
 

 
 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 

AGENDA OF THE 

LAWNDALE PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, April 10, 2024 - 6:30 p.m. 

Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 

Members of the public may provide their comments when the public comment sections of the meeting are opened. 

Anyone unable to attend the meeting may submit their public comment by email to agutierrez@lawndalecity.org.  

Submit your written comments to the Community Development Department by 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting. 

Electronic, or written, comments must identify the Agenda Item Number in the comment letter or the subject line 

of the email. The public comment period will close once the public hearing time for the agenda item has concluded. 

The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the Commission. All comments should be a 

maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 minutes of speaking time.  

 

Copies of this Agenda Packet may be obtained prior to the meeting by written request or on the City Website. Interested parties 

may contact the Community Development Department at (310) 973-3230 for clarification regarding individual agenda items. 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Minutes of the Lawndale Planning Commission Regular Meeting – February 28, 2024 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Members of the audience may address the Commission on matters of public interest, which pertain 

to the City and are not otherwise listed on the agenda. If you wish to speak, please step forward to 

the microphone, but not required, state your name and city of residence, and make your 

presentation. The maximum time for the presentation is 3 minutes. 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

1. Case No. 23-27: A Proposal to Revoke a Special Use Permit, Variance, and Development 

Permit Application to Construct a New 71-Unit Hotel with Tuck Under Parking at the 

Property Addressed as 15329 Hawthorne Boulevard within the (GC) General 

Commercial Zone. 

 

2. Case No. 24-04: A Request for a Special Use Permit for the On-Site Sale/Consumption of 

Beer, Wine, and Distilled Spirits (Type 47 License) for an Existing Restaurant (King of 

Wings) Located at 14406 Hawthorne Boulevard and Finding Exemption from CEQA. 

mailto:agutierrez@lawndalecity.org
http://lawndaleca.hosted.civiclive.com/government/departments/city_clerk_s_office/agendas_minutes/planning_commission


Agenda 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

April 10, 2024 

Page 2 

 

 

G. REGULAR AGENDA  

H. ITEMS FROM THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

I. ITEMS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission will be held at 6:30 p.m. on 

Wednesday, April 24, 2024, in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, 

Lawndale, California. 

It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 

all respects. If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 

what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner. Please 

contact the Community Development Department at (310) 973-3230 prior to the meeting to inform us of 

your particular needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. Please advise us at that time if you 

will need accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 

agenda for the Planning Commission meeting to be held on April 10, 2024, was posted not 

less than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

_____________________________________ 

Adrian Gutierrez,  

Administrative Assistant II 



 

 

MINUTES OF THE 

LAWNDALE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

FEBRUARY 28, 2024 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairperson Price called the regular meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. in the Lawndale City Hall 

Council Chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California. 

B. ROLL CALL 

Commissioners Present: Chairperson Ni Kal S. Price, Vice Chairperson John Martinez, 

Commissioner Dr. Daniel Urrutia 

Commissioners Absent: Commissioner Madonna Sitka, Commissioner Scott Smith  

Other Participants: Acting Assistant City Attorney Justin Tamayo, Community 

Development Manager Jared Chavez, Associate Planner Jose 

Hernandez, Administrative Assistant II Adrian Gutierrez 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairperson Price led the flag salute. 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Minutes of the Lawndale Planning Commission Regular Meeting – January 24, 2024 
 

Commissioner Urrutia motioned to approve the minutes with a second from Vice 

Chairperson Martinez. The vote was carried 3-0 with commissioners Sitka and Smith 

absent. 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 None 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS    

1. Case No. 24-01: A Request for Consideration for a Special Use Permit to Allow Off-Site 

Sale of Beer and Wine (Type 20 License) at the Property Located at 14411 Hawthorne 

Boulevard (Sprouts Farmers Market) Within the General Commercial (GC) Zone and 

Finding of Exemption from CEQA. 

 

Community Development Manager Chavez introduced the item. Associate Planner Hernandez 

gave a presentation on the item.  

 

Chairperson Price asked if the on-site parking lot is shared between all tenants and if each tenant 

would share responsibility for cleaning the parking lot. 

 



Minutes – Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

February 28, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Vice Chairperson Martinez asked if the store, or any of its tenants, would sell alcohol for on-site 

consumption. Associate Planner Hernandez responded the alcohol license is a Type-20, which is 

for off-site consumption. 

 

Chairperson Price opened the public hearing at 6:44 p.m. 

 

Terri Dickerhoff, Sprouts representative, provided clarification on condition #8, stating the 

intention of the condition is for Sprouts to only clean the sidewalks on the private property 

immediately adjacent to the Sprouts building. She also mentioned that the lot for the project site 

has three different property owners, each responsible for keeping their part of the lot clean and 

maintained. 

 

Chairperson Price closed the public hearing at 6:45 p.m. 

 

Vice Chairperson Martinez motioned to approve Resolution 24-03 with a second from 

Commissioner Urrutia. The motion was carried 3-0 with commissioners Sitka and Smith 

absent. 

 

City staff and the Commission further discussed the wording and interpretation of condition #8. 

The consensus of the discussion was to clarify that Sprouts would only be responsible for 

cleaning the sidewalks immediately adjacent to the Sprouts building and not the entire center or 

public sidewalks. The commission directed staff to update the wording for condition #8 to reflect 

the discussed changes. 

 

A substitute motion was made by Vice Chairperson Martinez to approve Resolution 24-03, 

with the amendment to condition #8, and was seconded by Commissioner Urrutia. The 

motion was carried 3-0 with commissioners Sitka and Smith absent. 

 

2. Case No. 24-05: General Plan Annual Progress Report 2023 

 

Community Development Manager Chavez introduced the item. Associate Planner Hernandez 

gave a presentation on the item.  

 

Chairperson Price and Vice Chairperson Martinez commented on the activity levels of the 

department throughout the years. Community Development Manager Chavez responded to the 

comments from the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson. 

 

Chairperson Price opened the public hearing at 7:01 p.m. and closed it at 7:02 p.m. since there 

were no comments from the audience. 

 

Vice Chairperson Martinez motioned to approve Resolution 24-04 with a second from 

Commissioner Urrutia. The motion was carried 3-0 with commissioners Sitka and Smith 

absent. 

G. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS  

None 



Minutes – Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

February 28, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

H. ITEMS FROM THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

None 

I. ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION 

None 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

Chairperson Price adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. to the next regularly scheduled meeting to 

be held on Wednesday, March 13, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. at the Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

located at 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California. 
 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Ni Kal S. Price, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Jared Chavez, Community Development Manager 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 10, 2024 

TO: Honorable Chair and Members of the Planning Commission 

REVIEWED BY: Jared Chavez, Community Development Manag~ 

PREPARED BY: Jose Hernandez, Associate Planner c9-+J 

RE: CASE NO. 23-27 - A PROPOSAL TO REVOKE A SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT, VARIANCE AND DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
APPLICATION TO CONSTRUCT A NEW 71-UNIT HOTEL WITH 
TUCK UNDER PARKING AT THE PROPERTY ADDRESSED AS 
15329 HAWTHORNE BLVD WITHIN THE (GC) GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL ZONE. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The Community Development Department staff is requesting that the Planning 
Commission consider revoking the Special Use Permit issued to construct a new 71-unit 
hotel with tuck under parking at the property addressed as 15329 Hawthorne Boulevard. 

APPLICANT: 

PROPERTY 
OWNER: 

LOCATION: 

APN: 

City of Lawndale 
1471 7 Burin Avenue 
Lawndale, CA 90260 

Sirju Patel 
DD. Majjar Holdings, LLC. 
850 N. Sepulveda Blvd 
Manhattan Beach CA 90266 

15329 Hawthorne Boulevard (the "Subject Property") 

4079-017-010 

1 



ZONE: 

GENERAL PLAN: 

SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT: 

ZONING CODE: 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
ASSESSMENT: 

SURROUNDING 
LAND USES 
AND ZONING: 

BACKGROUND: 

AGENDA ITEM F-1 

GC (General Commercial) 

The City's General Plan designates the Subject Property as 
"Commercial," a designation designed to provide the community 
with a wide variety of retail shops, restaurants, services and office 
uses to meet the daily commercial needs of the residents. 

Pursuant to section 17.12.110 of the Lawndale Municipal Code, the 
Planning Commission may revoke an approved discretionary land 
use permit if the subject property violates any provision of Title 17, 
the City's Zoning Code. Condition number 5 of Resolution No. 18-
14 states, "violation of , or noncompliance with , any of these 
conditions, as determined by the Community Development Director, 
shall constitute grounds for revocation of this Development Permit 
and/or a code enforcement action." 

The Subject Property is zoned GC (General Commercial) in the 
Hawthorne Blvd Specific Plan. The GC Zone allows hotels subject 
to a Special Use Permit. 

The proposed activity is not a significant impact on the environment 
and is exempt pursuant to sections Section 15378 "Project" of the 
CEQA guidelines because the proposed revocation is not a project 
per the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") guidelines. 

North: 
South: 
East: 
West: 

GC (General Commercial) Zone 
GC (General Commercial) Zone 
R-2 (Two Family Residence) Zone 
GC (General Commercial) Zone 

The City issued a Special Use Permit in October 2018 to authorize the operation of a 
four (4) story, 71 -unit commercial hotel with tuck under parking garage at 15329 
Hawthorne Boulevard. The site is currently vacant with chain-link fencing surrounding 
the property. 

2 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

Section 17 .12.100 of the Lawndale Municipal Code outlines what is procedurally 
required in order to properly revoke a Special Use Permit. Section 17.12.100 states: 

"If the property subject to an approved discretionary land use permit 
violates any provision of this title, or if there is a failure to comply with any 
conditions of approval, the director of community development shall refer 
the permit back to the planning commission." 

If the Planning Commission is not satisfied that the regulation or condition is being 
complied with, the Commission may direct staff to hold a noticed public hearing to 
consider the revocation of such permit at a future meeting. 

The applicant (property owner) of the approved hotel has not exercised the right to 
develop the proposed hotel as approved by the City in October 2018. The applicant 
submitted structural plans to Building and Safety in June 2021. After two years from 
plan check submittal, the applicant failed to submit corrections and the Building and 
Safety plan check expired. This lead to a follow up email by staff on March 28, 2023, 
that stated "get all plans approved, obtain all agency clearances by August 17, 2023." 
The August 17, 2023 deadline was the expiration date of the architecture plans that 
were submitted for Building and Safety plan check. If the property opted to pursue the 
hotel after August 17, 2023 expiration date, a new set of updated architectural plans 
would be required and reflect the current California Building Code requirements. The 
property owner has not submitted updated architectural plans to continue Building and 
Safety plan check review. 

After the building and safety plan check expiration date, city staff reached out numerous 
times to the developer regarding the status of the project. The applicant did not provide 
any evidence or intentions of moving forward with the project. More than five years have 
passed since the Special Use Permit approval for the hotel project, and it shows that the 
property owner has no intention of ever completing the project. 

Besides not submitting updated architectural plans to Building and Safety, the subject 
site has not maintained the site in good condition. Municipal Services (Code 
Enforcement) issued three violation notices regarding the following items: 

1) Remove all graffiti off the property, including, but not limited to block walls and 
temporary fence. 

2) Remove all junk, trash , and debris from the property. 
3) Remove homeless encampment from the property. 
4) Secure the property properly. 
5) Maintain and remove all overgrown vegetation. 

The first notice was mailed on March 5, 2020, the second notice was mailed October 7, 
2020, and the final notice was mailed October 16, 2020. After the three notices, city 

3 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

staff began citing the property owner because of property negligence. A total of seven 
citations were issued to the property owner for the following reasons: 

1) Storage of vehicles and equipment. 
2) Remove all graffiti from the property. 
3) Property maintenance. 
4) Overgrown vegetation. 

Most recently, on January 24, 2024, Municipal Services confi rmed that the property 
owner was still "storing things on the vacant lot" and has not paid the citations from the 
violations mentioned above. 

Additionally, staff received several complaints by residents of loitering by transients as 
well as squatters on the subject site, which is a violation of the Zoning Code and 
Condition of Approval No. 54of the SUP. A code enforcement case was initiated 
against the property owner for the overall lack of maintenance of the subject property. 
There has been an accumulation of debris, overgrown vegetation and storage of 
vehicles that are overlooked by the property owner. The property owner has created a 
problem where there has been recurring use of significant City resources, to remind him 
that the site must be maintained as well as to get him to build the project. 

After several inquiries via email and phone about the status of the project, city staff 
informed the applicant that the city would recommend the revocation of the approved 
hotel associated with the Special Use Permit if architectural plans were not submitted to 
Building and Safety Plan check. A due date of August 17, 2023, was provided to the 
property owner by email and only false promises were stated by the property owner. No 
action was taken. In addition , code enforcement has mailed numerous citations and 
letters to the property owner regarding the negligence of the vacant property. 

The Planning Commission approved the Special Use Permit via Resolution No 18-41 on 
the 24th of October of 2018. Conditions number 5 and 54 of the approved resolution 
have not been consistently met by the property owner. Condition number 5 and 54 state 
the following: 

(i) Condition No. 5 of Resolution 18-14: Violation of, or noncompliance with, 
any of these conditions, as determined by the Community Development 
Director, shall constitute grounds for revocation of this Development 
Permit and/or a code enforcement action of the project site 

(ii) Condition No. 54 of Resolution 18-14: The applicant shall comply with the 
City Noise Ordinance, Chapter 8.20 of the LMC, and the City's regulations 
regarding loitering and curfew. 

REVOCATION: 

Pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Section 17.12.110, a permit may be revoked for 
a violation of the permit, including the failure to comply with City regulations or any 

4 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

conditions of approval, after the director of community development refers the permit 
back to the Planning Commission. If the Commission is not satisfied that the regulations 
or conditions are being complied with , the Commission shall direct staff to hold a 
noticed public hearing to consider the revocation of such permit. Upon completion of 
the public hearing, the Planning Commission may, by resolution, revoke the permit, or it 
may take such other action as is necessary to ensure compliance. Within fifteen days 
of the decision to revoke a permit, the director of community development shall advise 
the City Council of this action in writing. 

This process is required because courts have generally held that a SUP or similar 
permit creates a "vested right" to the permitted use or facility once the use or facility has 
been substantially initiated and that the proper means by which to cancel the permit is 
revocation and not some conditional or codified expiration. See Goat Hill Tavern v. City 
of Costa Mesa (1992) 6 Cal.App.4th 1519, 1530. Nevertheless, although a permittee 
who has incurred "substantial expense" and "acted in reliance" on a permit may have 
acquired a fundamental right to continue using the permit, a permit may be revoked, 
following due process, based on failure to comply with conditions of approval or on 
some other compelling public necessity. See Community Development Comm'n of 
Mendocino County v. City of Fort Bragg (1988) 204 Cal.App.3d 1124; Bauer v. City of 
San Diego (1999) 75 Cal.App.4th 1281. 

CONCLUSION: 

Due to the uncompliant history associated with this SUP, the Community Development 
Director is now referring this SUP to the Planning Commission for direction. The 
property owner has repeatedly violated the conditions of approval under Resolution No. 
18-14 and has not cooperated with city staff to abate nuisances (maintenance, graffiti, 
homeless encampment, and storage of equipment) that affect the neighboring residents 
and the City's general welfare. The property owner has stalled all efforts to move 
forward with the proposed hotel and shared with staff that the proposed hotel is not 
moving forward. The subject site is located on one of the City's major corridors 
(Hawthorne Boulevard) and has become an eyesore which is contradictory to the goals 
and objectives of the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan. Accordingly, staff is 
recommending that the Planning Commission direct staff to schedule and provide notice 
of public hearing to consider the revocation of Special Use Permit No. 18-14 associated 
with the hotel at a future Planning Commission meeting. 

PUBLIC REVIEW: 

Notices of a public hearing on this Project were mailed to property owners within a 500 
ft. radius of the Subject Property. Notices were also posted and published in the Daily 
Breeze on March 30, 2024, and in the designated public place (City Hall message 
board) , pursuant to Government Code section 65091 (a)(5)(B). 

5 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

The City Attorney's office has been consulted on this process and has approved the 
attached resolution as to form. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Planning Commission: 

1) Conduct a public hearing; 

2) Find and determine that the proposed Project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Section 15378 "Project" of the 
CEQA guidelines because the proposed revocation is not a project per the 
California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") guidelines; 

3) Direct the Planning Commission to set a public hearing to revoke the Special Use 
Permit issued through Resolution No. 18-23 for the next regularly scheduled 
Planning Commission meeting on April 24, 2024. 

EXHIBITS: "A" Case No. 18-23: Staff Report and Resolution No. 18-14 
"B" Vicinity Map 
"C" Code Enforcement Photos 

6 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

Exhibit A 

Case No 18-23 : Staff Report 
and Resolution NO 18-14 

7 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 24, 2018 

TO: Honorable Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission 

PREPARED BY: Christopher Wilson, Senior Planner 

REVIEWED BY: Sean M. Moore, AICP, Community Development Director 

RE: PUBLIC HEARING: CASE NO. 18-23 - A PROPOSAL FOR A 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT, DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, PARKING 
STUDY AND VARIANCE FROM PARKING STALL STANDARDS 
TO DEVELOP 71 ROOM UNIT HOTEL WITH TUCK UNDER 
PARKING GARAGE AT THE PROPERTY ADDRESSED AS 
15329 HAWTHORNE BLVD AND CONSIDERATION OF CEQA 
CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The Applicant is seeking approval of a Special Use Permit, Development Permit, 
Parking Study and Variance from Parking Stall Standards to construct a four story hotel 
with a tuck under parking garage. The hotel shall have a 71 room occupancy and shall 
be located at the property addressed as 15329 Hawthorne Blvd within the GC (General 
Commercial) zone (the "Project"). The site currently contains a used car dealership, 
which will be demolished as part of this project. 

APPLICANT: 

PROPERTY 
OWNER: 

LOCATION: 

APN: 

ZONE: 

Sirju Patel 

DD. Majjar Holdings, LLC. 
850 N. Sepulveda Blvd 
Manhattan Beach CA. 90266 

15329 Hawthorne Boulevard (the "Subject Property") 

4079-017-010 

GC (General Commercial) Zone 

1 



SITE: 

Lot706 

GENERAL PLAN: 

SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT 

ZONING CODE: 

DEVELOPMENT 
PERMIT: 

PARKING 
STUDY: 

VARIANCE: 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
ASSESSMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM F-1 

The subject site is of one lot, with the following details: 

Lot width: 
Lot depth: 
Area: 

63.33feet 
286 feet 
18,112 square feet 

The City's General Plan designates the Subject Property as 
"commercial," which is a designation that provides the community 
with a wide variety of retail shops, restaurants, services and office 
uses to meet the daily needs of residents. 

Pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Section 17.28.020 the 
approval of a Special Use Permit is required for any hotel or motel 
project. 

The Subject Property is zoned GC (General Commercial). The GC 
Zone allows for the construction of a hotel subject to approval of a 
Special Use Permit from the Planning Commission . 

Pursuant to Chapter 6 Table 2-1 of the Hawthorne Boulevard 
Specific Plan a Development Permit shall be required for any new 
building within the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan area. 

Pursuant to Chapter 2 of the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan, a 
reduction of required parking spaces can be granted by the 
Planning Commission as a condition to the Special Use Permit. 

Pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 17.24 Applicant 
may request a variance. Here, a variance is being requested for a 1 
foot reduction in parking stall depth standards. 

The proposed project is categorically exempt from the provisions of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to the 
following section of the CEQA Guidelines: 

• Section 15332 "In-Fill Development Projects" 

2 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

SURROUNDING 
LAND USES 
AND ZONING: 

EXHIBITS: 

ANALYSIS 

North: 
South: 
East: 
West: 

"A": 
"B" 
uC " 

"D": 

Plans 

GC (General Commercial) Zone 
GC (General Commercial) Zone 
R-2 (Two Family Residence) Zone 
GC (General Commercial) Zone 

Parking Study 
Vicinity Map 
Photos 

"E" Agency Comments 
"F ' Resolution No. 18-14 

Description of Proposed Project 

The Project involves the construction of a four (4) story, 71 unit commercial hotel with 
tuck under parking garage. The proposed building is designed to be built on a podium 
with its entry corridor, lobby and parking being located on the first floor and subsequent 
floors shall have proposed hotel rooms and gym and manager's suite. As proposed, the 
development meets or exceeds most of the City's minimum development standards 
except for parking and parking access design. Given the narrow width of the lot the 
applicant is requesting a variance for parking stall lengths and is asking for a 
consideration of reduced parking requirements through a parking study. 

Compliance with Development Standards 

The Project is subject to the development standards of the GC (General Commercial) 
Zone and Section 17.56.160 through 17.56.200 of the Lawndale Municipal Code (LMC). 
The following matrix identifies the development standards and proposed development 
characteristics. 

Development 
Standards Required Prooosed Comoliance 

18,000 sq.ft. 
Lot Size . minimum lot size 18,112 SQ. ft. lot Yes 

Lot Covera(::le 90% of total lot area 75.60% Yes 

Front Yard Setback 3 feet 5 feet Yes 
3'-8" North Side 

Side Yard Setback 3 feet 5'-10" South Side Yes 

3 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

Rear Yard Setback 5 feet 16'-1" feet Yes 

Heir:iht 50 feet or four (4) stories four /4) stories Yes 

1 space per unit w/out kitchens 47 parking spaces on 
2 spaces per unit with kitchens site plus 24 spaces 

1 space per manager's unit adjacent off site NO 
1 parking space/ two (Hawthorne Blvd. (See Parking 

# of Parkinr:i Spaces employees median) Section) 

Landscaoinq 5% 24% Yes 

The General Commercial Zone allows for the development of a hotel subject to the 
approval of a Special Use Permit. Hotels may be constructed on lots that have a 
minimum of 18,000 square feet of lot area and may have a height of up to 50 feet or 
four (4) stories. The proposed project shall consist of the development of a four (4) story 
hotel on an 18,112 square foot lot. The subject site meets minimum lot area and height 
requirements. The proposed lot coverage is 75.60%, which is significantly less than the 
allowable maximum 90% lot coverage allowed pursuant to LMC Section 17.56.180. 

Parking 

Pursuant to Section 17.56.200 of the LMC, pertaining to hotels in commercial zones, 
parking requirements are as follows: 

1. One (1) parking space shall be required for each unit without kitchen facilities. 
2. Two (2) parking spaces shall be provided for units with kitchen facil ities. 
3. Two (2) parking spaces shall be required for each manager's unit. 
4. One (1) handicap parking space for each handicap unit. 
5. One (1) parking space for every two employees. 

Accordingly, parking standards require the proposed hotel to provide a minimum of 79 
parking spaces. The proposed hotel will have 71 rooms (all without kitchen facilities) , 
one (1) manager's unit, and anticipated 12 employees. As proposed the project is 
providing a total of 47 parking spaces and is deficient of 32 parking spaces. The 
applicant is providing a parking study that forecasts peak demand for hotel parking and 
justify a parking supply that is lower than the codes requirements. 

The standards of the Hawthorne Boulevard Plan will apply to the Project given that it is 
located within the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan. Pursuant to the Hawthorne 
Boulevard Specific Plan, Chapter 2, Section G(9), "Parking Reduction," the Applicant 
has requested the Planning Commission consider a parking analysis to allow fewer 
parking spaces than would be allowed under current code. (This section provides in 
part that "required parking may be reduced on a case-by-case basis where it can be 
documented that a different parking requirement for a particular land use is justified 
based on peak usage, turnover of spaces, or space needs in similar circumstances.") 

4 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

Section G(6) of Chapter 2 of the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan also provides that 
on-street parking immediately adjacent to the Project in the GC zone may be counted 
towards the required number of spaces of off-street parking spaces. 

Attached as Exhibit "B" is the parking study that provides the following: (1) a review of 
potential parking demand using published parking demand ratios for hotels (e.g. as 
summarized in the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Parking Generation 
publication); (2) a review of other available hotel weekday and weekend parking 
accumulation surveys at similar hotel uses; (3) a forecast of peak parking demand 
assuming full occupancy; and (4) a determination as to the adequacy of the parking 
supply to serve the project site. 

The parking study concluded that based on the existing characteristics of the proposed 
hotel (i.e. the hotel doesn't provide resort like services like banquet space, meeting 
rooms, pool, restaurant and bar for the general public), a review of ITE published 
parking ratios, and a review of other empirical parking demand survey data obtained 
from parking surveys conducted at other hotels, it was recommended that a parking 
ratio of 0.75 spaces per room be employed for the planning purposes. Using this 
parking ratio would result in a forecast demand of 53 parking spaces (71 rooms x 0.75 
spaces/occupied rooms= 53 spaces). 

Additionally, as a total of 47 on-site parking spaces is planned to be provided for the 
project, the parking study recommends that the additional six (6) parking spaces be 
provided on the street or within the median along Hawthorne Boulevard as allowed 
within the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan. The parking study found that adjacent to 
the Project site in the Hawthorne Boulevard median, there are 24 spaces available that 
can be counted towards the required number of parking spaces. With additional parking 
within the median there is sufficient parking to reach the total number of parking spaces 
needed for employees and hotel guests. 

Parking Space Depth and Variance Standards: 

The Applicant is requesting a variance from access design standards for parking stall 
depths. The LMC allows a variance from the zoning regulations to be granted when 
special circumstance exists with relationship to size, shape, location, topography or 
surroundings of a property make it unreasonable to comply with development 
standards. Staff believes that there are extenuating circumstances involving this site 
that would warrant the granting of a variance, specifically that the narrow lot width of 
63.33 feet (compared with the typical _80_ feet) makes it infeasible for the Appl icant to 
provide parking spaces at a depth of 20 feet as would otherwise be required. Instead , 
the Applicant would be providing parking spaces with a depth of 19 feet. Compared to 
the surrounding cities Lawndale's standards are more restrictive, given that standard 
parking depths are considered to be 18 feet. By providing 19 feet in depth for parking 
spaces the project will be in alignment with parking standards found within neighboring 
jurisdictions. 

5 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

The site's width is not wide enough to accommodate 90 degree parking. Given that a 90 
degree parking configuration is the most suitable configuration for the development, as 
it yields the most number of parking spaces and provides sufficient ingress and egress 
for the site. A total lot width of 65 feet would be needed to accomplish a 90 degree 
parking configuration when taking in to consideration, sufficient depth of spaces (20 
feet) and backup isle clearances for the site (25 feet). The existing site as currently 
configured has a width of 63.33 which is less than the required width of 65 feet to 
accommodate a 90 degree parking space configuration. A variance would be needed to 
allow a lesser depth for parking spaces (19 feet) than the required 20 feet. 

LMC Section 17.24.040 (Grounds for Granting a Variance) stipulates that the following 
findings must be made by the approving body to approve a variance request: 

1. The strict application of the provisions of this title deprives the property of 
privileges enjoyed by other property in the vicinity and in an identical land use 
category because of special circumstances applicable to the property, such as 
size, shape, topography, location or surroundings; and 

2. The granting of the variance will not constitute a grant of special privileges 
inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties within the same vicinity 
and in the same land use category; and 

3. The granting of a variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 
welfare, or materially injurious to other properties or improvements in the 
vicinity. 

Accordingly, the current lot width of the Subject Property prevents the development of 
the property in a manner comparable to other commercial properties in the GC zone. 
Most properties with in the vicinity of the Subject Property have a lot width greater than 
63 feet and thus are able to be developed with parking spaces with a depth of 20 feet. 
Other properties within the GC zone that have similar lot area sizes and a wider width 
are better suited to develop sufficient parking designs. Hence, staff believes that the 
granting of a variance from Parking stall depth standards is appropriate for the Subject 
Property, as the narrow width of the lot and close proximity to a built out commercial 
center make it impractical to comply with the parking space depth development 
standard for hotels within the General Commercial zone. 

Building Design and Site Improvements 

The Applicant has incorporated design features into the building to provide sufficient 
interest on the building elevations that are visib le from the public right-of-way. The 
design for the building fa9ade includes components of the modern contemporary 
architectural style typical in Southern California. The Applicant has provided 
architectural interest and detail to break up the buildings, particularly along the front 
elevations, using such design features/elements as: 

6 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

• Varying the planes of the exterior walls. 
• Articulating the different parts of the building fa9ade by use of colors. 
• Avoiding blank walls. 
• Varying the roof height. 
• Establishing a prominent entrance. 

In addition, roof-mounted equipment on the building will be screened from public view 
by a raised parapet wall. 

Development Permit 

Chapter 6 Section 6 D of the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan "Development Review 
and Approval" outlines the criteria a project must meet for the approval of a 
development permit. Based on staff's review of the proposed project, it meets and/or 
exceeds all criteria for a development permit. 

PUBLIC REVIEW Notices of a public hearing were mailed to property owners within a 
500 ft. radius of the site on October 10, 2018. Notices were also 
posted in four (4) public places (City Hall , City Community Center, 
City's Municipal Services Department at message boards, and 
City's post office at message board [nearest public place in 
Lawndale to the project site]) on October 10, 2018 pursuant to 
Government Code section 65091 (a)(5)(B). Additional notice was 
published in the Daily Breeze on Friday, October 12, 2018. 

LEGAL REVIEW The City Attorney has reviewed the resolution and approved it as to 
form. 

RECOMMENDATION 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT the Planning Commission conduct a public hearing and: 

1) Find and determine that the proposed project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Section 15332 of the CEQA 
Guidelines; and 

2) Adopt Resolution No. 18-14 setting forth findings of fact relative to the submitted 
application. 

7 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CASE NO. 18-23: SPECIAL 
USE PERMIT, DEVELOP1\1ENT PERMIT, PARIGNG STUDY AND 
VARIANCE FROM PARIGNG STALL DEPTH STANDARDS, FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A 71 UNIT HOTEL WITH TUCK UNDER 
P ARiaNG AT THE PROPERTY ADDRESSED AS 15329 HAWTHORNE 
BOULEY ARD, WITHIN THE GC (GENERAL COM1\1ERCIAL) ZONE 
AND FINDING OF CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION FROM CEQA 

WHEREAS, an application was filed by Sirju Patel ("Applicant") seeking 
approval of a Special Use Permit, Development Permit Parking Study and Variance from parking 
stall depth standards, (collectively, "Case No. 18-23") for the construction and development of a 
four (4) story, 71 unit hotel structure with tuck under parking ("Project"), located at 15329 
Hawthorne Boulevard ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned GC (General Commercial); and 

WHEREA:S, pursuanflotawndaleMurucipal-eode('~r:;-Me";Section 17:28~020, 
the approval of a Special Use Pennit ("SUP") is required for the construction of any hotel or 
motel in any commercial zone; and 

. WHEREAS, the location of the Property is within the Hawthorne Boulevard 
Specific Plan Area and the land use and development standards of the Hawthorne Boulevard 
Specific Plan therefore apply to the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan requires Planning 
Commission approval of a Development Pennit for the construction of any new building per 
Table 2-1 (Revised June, 2001), "Applicability of Development Permit," of the Hawthorne 
Boulevard Specific Plan; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section C of Chapter 6 of the Hawthorne Boulevard 
Specific Plan, when a project is subject to both a Development Permit and a SUP, both permits 
will be processed concurrently; and 

WHEREAS, the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan and LMC Section 
17.56.200 provide the requirements for off-site parking for hotels in commercial zones; and 

WHEREAS, the Project site has a narrow width and the size of lot prevents the 
development of all necessary parking pursuant to Section 17.56.200; and 

WHEREAS, the Property lot width is not wide enough to accommodate a 90 
degree parking configuration, which is the most suitable configuration for the development as it 
_yields the most number of parking spaces and provides sufficient ingress and egress from the 
Property; and 

Resolution No. 18-14 
Case No. 18-23 

1 



WHEREAS, a total lot width of 65 feet would be required to accomplish a 90 
degree parking configuration; and 

WHEREAS, the Property's lot width of 63.33 feet constrains the Property in a 
manner that does not exists for other commercial prope1ties within the sunounding GC zone; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is sun-ounded by fully developed lots preventing a 
merger of adjacent prope1ties to create a conforming site location; and 

WHEREAS, the conditions of the Property described above warrant the granting 
of variance for parldng stall depth standards pursuant to requirements of LMC Chapter 17.24; 
and 

WHEREAS, Section G(9) of Chapter 2 of the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific 
Plan allows for parking standards for to be reduced on a case by case basis where it can be 
documented that a different parking requirement for a particular land use is justified based upon 
peak usage, turnover of spaces, or space needs in similar circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined, based on its review and 
consid=e1=·a'fi.,,.·=on~of7l""J)al'kingstmly,-tnartne cumo:lative pealc demana- for tl:ns partico:lar Propert=y-,--- 
justifies a reduction in the required parking standards; and 

WHEREAS, Section G(6) of Chapter 2 of the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific 
Plan allows for on-street parking immediately adjacent to the Project site in a general 
commercial zone to be counted towards the required number of off-street parking spaces; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will be developed in accordance with the standards set 
forth in the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan and LMC subject to the conditions deemed 
appropriate by the Planning Commission set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, Case No. 18-23 was properly noticed for a public hearing before the 
Planning Commission on October 24, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, evidence was heard and presented from all persons interested in 
affecting said proposal, from all persons protesting the same and from members of the City Staff 
and the Planning Commission having reviewed, analyzed and studied said proposal. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The recitals set forth above are true and correct and inco1porated herein by this 
reference. 

Section 2: The proposed activity is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines pursuant to Section 15332, since the Project is an infill 
development. The Project involves construction of a hotel stmcture on a lot 
surrounded by urban development, on property zoned for general commercial uses. 

Resolution No. 18-14 2 
Case No. 18-23 



Section 3: 

A. 

The Project has no potential to substantially impact the environment. Staff is hereby 
is hereby directed to prepare and file a Notice of Exemption. 

In connection with the in-fill development Categorical Exemption (CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15332), the Planning Comrrussion finds that the Project meets 
the following condition: 

The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and 
regulations. The Project consists of the construction of a four (4) story, 71 unit hotel 
structure with tuck under parldng. The Project is consistent with the applicable 
General Commercial (GC) zoning designation and regulations, which allow 
Boarding and Lodging facilities, including hotels. The proposed plans are in 
compliance with all of the development standards of the GC zoning district, subject 
to the approved variance for parking stall depth standards. The Project is consistent 
with Goal 7 of the Land Use Element and Policies Jc, le, lh, and 2a of the 
Economic Development Element of the General Plan. Additionally, the Project is 
consistent with the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan. 

- ----w----- ~ The-propused-development-o-c-curs-witlrirnitrlimits on aproject~ite ofno more than
five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses. The Project occurs in and is 
substantially surrounded by a commercial area within city limits on a site of less 
than five acres. The Property is 18,112 square feet in area (approximately 0.42 
acres). 

C. The Project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. 
The Project site is located in a highly urbanized and densely populated area along 
the Hawthorne Boulevard corridor that serves as a primary transportation route 
and a community focal point for the City. The Project site is currently used as a 
used car dealership, and additionally its surrounding urban uses do not make the 
site conducive as a habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. 

D. Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, 
noise, air quality, or water quality. The Project conditions of approval will ensure 
that the Project will not result in any significant effects related to traffic, noise, air 
quality, or water quality. These conditions will ensure that any impacts that could. 
be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare of neighboring properties are 
minimized through public improvements. There are no reasonably identifiable 
unusual circumstances that would cause significant effects on the environment. 

Moreover, the Project does not meet any of the exceptions to the CEQA categorical 
exemptions found in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2. Specifically, the following: 
(i) the Project and successive projects of the same type will not result in cumulative 
impacts; (ii) there are no unusual circumstances associated with the Project 
creating the reasonable possibility of significant effects; (iii) the Project will not 
result in damage to scenic resources within an officially designated scenic highway; 
(zv) the Project is not located on a site that the Department of Toxic Substances 

Resolution No. 18-14 3 
Cnse No. 18-23 



Control and the Secretary of the Environmental Protection have identified, 
pursuant to Government Code section 65962.5, as being affected by hazardous 
wastes or clean-up problems,· and (v) the Project will not have a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a historical resource. 

Traffic. The Project will not result in any significant transportation impacts. The 
parldng study identifies actual peak parking demand of the Project is substantially 
less than the zoning code requires. The parking study determined that the Project is 
adequately served by the parldng supply available. Further, although additional 
trips will likely be generated by the Project, any additional traffic caused by these 
trips will be insignificant in light of existing traffic on Hawthorne Boulevard In 
summary, although the Project may result in an increased demand for parldng 
spaces along Hawthorne Boulevard and in the Hawthorne Boulevard median, and 
an increase in vehicle trips, any impacts would not rise to a substantial or 
significant level in relation to the existing traffic load and capacity of Hawthorne 
Boulevard so as to significantly affect traffic and parldng. 

Noise. The proposed construction and operation of the Project will not result in any 
significant noise impacts. The construction and operation of the Project will be 
sub;ect to the restrictions and requirements oTlf,,e Cify's noise ordinance _a_n_,d,___ __ _ 
standards to ensure that no significant noise impacts are generated on-site by the 
Project that would impact adjacent parcels. 

Air Quality. The proposed construction and operation of the Project will not result 
in any significant air quality impacts. The Project is subject to standards and 
requirements specifically designed to ensure that construction and operation does 
not result in significant air quality impacts. Short and long term emissions resulting 
from the Project are not predicted to exceed thresholds and not result in a 
cumulative net increase in pollutants above City standards. There is nothing 
particular or unusual about the Project that would cause it to generate 
uncharacteristically high levels of pollutants. Therefore the Project would not result 
in new significant impacts to air quality. 

Water Quality. The proposed construction and operation of the Project will not 
result in any significant water quality impacts. The Project is in a highly urbanized 
environment and there are no lakes or creeks in the immediate proximity. The 
Project is also subject to City standards, including but not limited to the 
Construction and Demolition Ordinance, to address water quality and reduce or 
eliminate the discharge of potential pollutants from the storm water runoff to the 
maximum extent practicable. Although the Project would be expected to increase 
water usage compared to existing conditions, the condition to submit project review 
prior to construction to Golden State Water Company provide adequate protection 
for potable groundwater. Therefore there are no significant effects relating to water 
quality. 

E. The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. All 
services and access to the proposed parcels meet local standards. Further, any 

Resolution No. 18-14 4 
Case No. 18-23 



Section 4: 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

conditions placed by local utilities or public services to adequately serve the Project 
are included within the _conditions of approval. 

The following findings of fact are hereby adopted: 

Special Use Permit (pursuant to LMC Section 17.04.104): 

The granting of a Special Use Permit will not be de1J:imental to the public health or 
welfare or injurious to the property or improvements in such zone or vicinity. It is 
not anticipated that the proposed use will impact the public health, safety or welfare 
or be injurious to other properties. The conditions of approval require the operators 
of the Project to control potential health and safety impacts related to noise, litter, 
loitering or any other illegal activity. 

The use applied for at the location indicated is properly one for which a Special Use 
Permit is authorized. The Zoning Regulations and the Hawthorne Boulevard 
Specific Plan allow the establishment of a Hotel in the General Commercial (GC) 
District, subject to the approval ofa Special Use Permit. 

The site for the proposed use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate said use, 
and all yard, spaces, walls, fences, parking, loading, landscaping, and other features 
required to adjust said use with the land and uses in the neighborhood. With the 
variance for parking stall depth standards, the subject development meets the 
minimum standards for development pursuant as identified within the Hawthorne 
Boulevard Specific Plan. 

The site abuts streets and highways adequate in width and pavement type to carry 
the kind of traffic generated by the proposed use. The project site is serviced by 
Hawthorne Boulevard which is a main thoroughfare with a 195 right of way. The 
Boulevard is adequate in size to carry traffic generated by the use of restaurant 
hotel. 

The granting of such special use permit is consistent with the City's General Plan. 
The proposed use is consistent with Goal 7 of the Land Use Element and Policies 1 c, 
le, lh, and 2a of the Economic Development Element of the General Plan. 

Development Permit ·(pursuant to Chapter 6 of the Hawthorne Boulevard 
Specific Plan) 

K. The Project is consistent with the development standards and design guidelines of 
the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan. With a granting of the variance for 
parldng stall depth standards, the Project has met the development standards for, 
setbacks, landscaping, lot coverage, site configuration, and building requirements 
for the General Commercial zone. It has also satisfied the design guidelines by 
having a well-articulated mass and bulk, .a significant amount of water efficient 

Resolution No. 18-14 5 
CAse No. 18-23 



L. 

M. 

N . 

0. 

landscaping, and use of contemporary fa<;ade material types that provide texture 
to exterior walls. 

The Project will not interfere with the use and enjoyment of neighboring existing 
or future developments, and will not create traffic or pedestrian hazards. The 
Project compliments and enhances the surrounding developments is not 
anticipated to impose any additional traffic impacts. The project site is sufficient 
to accommodate the use of the facilities and will not negatively impact the 
surrounding neighborhood. The Project is located on Hawthorne Boulevard, 
which is a major thoroughfare that can adequately cany the traffic generated by 
the Project. 

The Project maintains and enhances the attractive and orderly development 
contemplated by the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan. With granting of the 
variance for parking stall depth standards, the Project meets all of the 
development standards and design guidelines. The Project adds to the aesthetic 
appeal of Hawthorne Boulevard and will be an attractive development. The 
building is designed to have a contemporary aesthetic and its fa<;ade material 
types provide a rich texture for exterior walls. 

The Project provides a desirable environment for its occupants, community 
residents, and visiting public through good aesthetic use of materials, texture and 
color. The building is designed to have a contemporary modern architectural 
style and is enhanced with a well-articulated roof with metal canopy. The far;ade 
is to be covered stucco and accented by a cultured stone veneer. These design 
features produce a desirable environment and demonstrate good aesthetic use of 
materials, texture and color. 

The Project would not be detrimental to the public, health, safety, or welfare, or 
materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity. The Project 
has been evaluated by many public agencies and has met their review standards. 
Additionally, the Project has been conditioned to accommodate public 
improvements and mitigate any negative impacts that could be detrimental to the 
public health, safety and welfare of neighboring properties. 

Variance for parking stall depth standards (pursuant to LMC Section 
17.24.040) 

P. The narrow width and lot size deprives the subject Property of privileges enjoyed 
by other prope1ty in the vicinity and in an identical land use category because of 
special circumstances applicable to the Property, such as size, shape topography, 
location or smToundings. The subject Property's ability to be developed in a 
manner consistent with other properties within the General Commercial zone is 
impaired without a variance due to its the unique size and location of the lot. The 
Property lot width of 63.33 feet currently does not meet the required 65 foot width 
standard to accommodate parking therefore preventing any development. The 

Resolution No. 18-14 6 
Case No. 18-23 



Q. 

R. 

subject Property is also adjacent to a fully developed commercial site and 166th 
St., rendering it infeasible to initiate a lot merger to increase the lot width. 

The approval of the variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties within the same vicinity 
and in the same land use category. Most properties within the General 
Commercial zone have a lot size that is greater than -63 feet such that they are 
permitted to be developed in accordance with the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific 
Plan and able to meet minimum standards. 

The granting of a variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 
welfare or injurious to the property or improvements in such zone or vicinity. The 
proposed Project is consistent with all development standards with the granting 
of a variance and it is not anticipated that the Project will impact the public 
health, safety or welfare or be injurious to other properties. Parking stall depths 
of 19 feet will allow for safe vehicle parking and safe ingress and egress from the 
parking lot. 

- --- Pa-rking-Reduction-Pursuant-to- HBSP Chapte1--2,s~ediun- (~{9)- B1fS"ml- On 
Parking Study 

S. The parking study concluded that based on the existing characteristics of the 
proposed hotel (i.e. doesn't provide resort like services like banquet space, 
meeting rooms, pool, restaurant and bar for the general public), a review of 
Institute of Transportation Engineers published parking ratios, and a review of 
other empirical parking demand survey data obtained from parking surveys 
conducted at other hotels; it was recommended that the parking ratio of 0.75 
spaces per room be employed for the planning purposes. Using this parking ratio 
would resort in a forecast demand of 53 parking spaces (71 rooms x 0.75 
spaces/occupied rooms= 53 spaces). 

T. A total of 47 on-site parking spaces is planned to be provided for the Project. The 
parking study recommends that the additional six (6) parking spaces be provided 
along on the street or within the median along Hawthorne Boulevard. The 
parking study found that 24 spaces are available adjacent to the Project site in the 
Hawthorne Boulevard median. The 47 on-site spaces plus the 24 spaces available 
in the median, for a total of 71 spaces, will be sufficient to accommodate hotel 
guests and employees. 

Section 4: The Planning Commission hereby approves this Project and grants a variance from 
parking stall depth standards, subject to the execution and/or fulfillment of the 
following conditions of approval: 

1. The Applicant shall submit a check to the City within five (5) days of approval of 
this Project, made payable to the Los Angeles County Recorder's Office, in the 

Resolution No. 18-14 7 
Case No. 18-23 



amount of $75.00 for the filing of a Categorical Exemption pursuant to the 
CEQA. 

2. Within thiity (30) • days of approval of this Project, the Applicant shall certify 
his/her acceptance of the conditions placed on the approval by signing a notarized 
Affidavit of Acceptance stating that the he/she accepts and shall be bound by all 
of the conditions. 

3. The Project shall be developed in accordance with all applicable City, County, 
State and Federal regulations. 

4. Approval of the Project does not authorize the Applicant or any employee, 
contractor, subcontractor, etc. to encroach upon adjacent properties. 

5. Violation of, or noncompliance with, any of these conditions, as dete1mined by 
the Community Development Director, shall constitute grounds for revocation of 
this Development Permit and/or a code enforcement action. 

6. Construction plans shall be submitted to the Community Development 
- - -------~Dc...=ce12artment (Elanning and Building Divisions), Public Works Depaliment,,~an= d~--

other agencies as required for review and approval prior to the issuance of any 
building pemuts. 

7. Except as set forth in subsequent conditions, and subject to City department and 
public agency corrections and conditions, the Property shall be developed 
substantially in accordance with the application and plans submitted. Any major 
changes as determined by the Community Development Director must be brought 
back for review to the Planning Commission at the Applicant's expense. 

8. Except as set forth in subsequent conditions, and subject to City department and 
public agency corrections and conditions, the Property shall be developed 
substantially in accordance with the application and plans submitted. Any minor 
changes made to the approved s·et of plans shall be reviewed and subject to the 
approval of the Community Development Director, inclusive of any fac;;ade 
changes. Any major changes as determined by the Community Development 
Director must be brought back for review to the Planning Commission at the 
Applicant's expense. 

9. The adjacent property owners shall be notified at least ten (10) days prior to any 
demolition, grading or construction on the Property. 

10. A landscape plan that complies with the requirements of LMC Section 17.88, 
Water Efficient Landscape, to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director, shall be approved prior to the issuance of building pe1mits. 

11. The Project shall comply with all Los Angeles County Fire Department 
conditions of approval. 

Resolution No. 18-14 8 
Case No. 18-23 



12. The Applicant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and its agents, 
officers and employees from or against any claim, action or proceeding against 
the City or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any 
approval by the City concerning the Project, including but not limited to the 
Special Use Pennit, Development Pe1mit, the granting of a variance, or the City's 
refusal to issue Certificates of Occupancy for the Applicant's failure to comply 
with any of these conditions of approval. The City shall promptly notify the 
Applicant of any filed claim, action or proceeding and shall cooperate fully in the 
defense of the action. 

13. The Project shall comply with all of the provisions of Title 13 of the Lawndale 
Municipal Code relating to public services and storm water management. The 
Project shall also conform to National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) standards and Standard Urban Storm Water Mitigation Plan (SUSMP) 
requirements, if applicable, prior to any grading operations. 

14. All property drainage shall be directed to the street in a manner acceptable to the 
Building Official. The Applicant shall not block existing drainage from adjacent 
properties and must show sufficient elevations outside of the Property and contour 

----- --- --Iines-to- aHow- the- Building- 0ffieial- to- aseert-ain- that- existing- d:raina-ge-from- 
adjacent properties is not blocked and adequate retaining systems are installed. 

15. All trees planted within five feet of paving shall be provided with root baniers. 

16. The Project shall comply with all County of Sanitation District of Los Angeles 
County conditions of approval. 

17. The Applicant shall contact Golden State Water Company for review of the 
existing water main once LA County Fire Department has issued their fire 
protection requirements. 

18. The Applicant shall request a cost estimate for water system modifications and 
project review prior to the stait construction from Golden State Water Company. 

19. The Applicant shall submit a signage plan to the Community Development 
Depaitment for review and approval prior to the installation of any signs. 

20. The Applicant shall be required to provide a total of 71 parking spaces, consisting 
of 47 off-street parking spaces and 24 on-street/ median parking spaces 
immediately adjacent to the Project. 

Public Works/City Engineer Conditions: 

21. The Applicant shall submit a copy of the prope1ty deed or recent title repo1t to the 
Department of Public Works/Engineering Division prior to the issuance of a 
building permit.. 

Resolution No. 18-14 9 
Case No. 18-23 



22. This Project is subject to the City of Lawndale's Construction and Demolition 
Ordinance. Building permits and/or demolition permits shall not be issued until 
Applicant complies with this ordinance as administered through the Department 
of Public Works, Engineering Division. The Applicant shall submit a demolition 
plan to the Public Works Department and pay all applicable fees in connection 
with the review thereof prior to the issuance of a demolition pennit. 

23. The Applicant shall submit an off site improvement plan to the Department of 
Public Works for review and approval prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
This plan shall show all existing site conditions and shall be prepared by a 
Registered Civil Engineer. 

24. The Applicant shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan prepared and signed by a 
registered civil engineer to the City's Building Division and pay all applicable 
fees in connection with the review thereof. The Applicant shall indicate the 
location of all on-site water mainlines and sewer laterals on the Grading and 
Drainage Plan. Such plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Building 
Official and City Engineer prior to issuance of a building permit. 

___ _ _,,2,.,5. +h(~--AppJfoai:rt.:.....s-hall---£u0mit-a copy-0f-the-appr0ved-Gr-ading-and-Brainage-P-lan-to
the Public Works Department prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

26. The Applicant shall submit a Final Grading and Drainage Certificate to the Public 
Works Department prior to obtaining a Ce1tificate of Occupancy, signed by a 
registered by a civil engineer, stating that the Project was constructed according to 
the approved Grading and Drainage Plan and that the Project drains to the street 
and does not block the cross-lot drainage from adjacent properties. 

27. The Applicant shall comply with the County and City Urban Storm Water 
Mitigation Plan co1Tesponding to NPDES permit prior to conducting any grading. 

28. The Applicant shall submit a copy of the final soils report to the Public Works 
Engineering Division prior to final approval from the Public Works Department. 
The repo1t shall be prepared by a licensed geotechnical engineer. 

29. The Applicant shall reconstruct damaged Portland Cement Concrete curb and 
gutter along 15329 Hawthorne Boulevard. 

30. The Applicant shall remove and reconstruct damaged and substandard sidewallc 
along 15329 Hawthorne Blvd. All new sidewalk and drive approaches must 
comply with American with Disabilities Act (ADA) . 

31. The Applicant shall reconstruct damaged and substandard drive approaches per 
American Public Works Association (APWA) standards to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer. 

Resolution No. 18-14 1 O 
Case No. I 8-23 



32. All proposed drive approach and driveway areas shall be realigned away from 
existing street trees. 

33. The Applicant shall relocate water meter(s) and/or other utilities outside of drive 
approach areas. 

34. The Applicant shall submit a copy of the Los Angeles County Fire Department 
clearance letter to the Public Works Department prior to issuance of Ce1tificate of 
Occupancy. 

35. The Applicant shall underground all dry utilities (electrical, telephone and cable 
TV) and install one (1) separate conduit for each utility connection. Accordingly, 
the Applicant shall contact the utility purveyors to arrange for the preparation of 
the necessary plans to accomplish the under grounding prior to receiving a 
Ce1tificate of Occupancy. All Southern California Edison vaults and strnctures 
shall be placed underground. 

36. The Applicant shall pay all applicable sewer connection fees to the County 
Sanitation Districts prior to the issuance of building permits from the Community 

--------------1- evelopment-Bepa1tment. 

3 7. The Applicant shall remove all existing utility pavement marldngs from the 
sidewalk and street prior to issuance of a Ce1tificate of Occupancy for the Project. 

38. The Applicant shall connect the building to the public sewer through an individual 
sewer lateral. The minimum size of each lateral is six (6) inches. When 
connecting to an existing lateral, a City-approved contractor shall verify the size 
of such lateral and shall provide proof of its integrity by providing a video tape of 
the lateral to the Department of Public Works /Engineering Division. Videotaping 
and verification of sewer later size and conditions must be done in the presence of 
the city engineer or inspector. Any and all existing sewer laterals less than six 
inches ( 6") in diameter shall be abandoned at the property line per City 
instructions. 

3 9. The Applicant shall construct tTee well covers per APW A standards for existing 
and proposed street trees. 

40. The Applicant shall establish survey markers and/or monuments at the Property's 
comers. The Applicant shall replace survey monuments damaged or destroyed 
during construction. The Applicant's surveyor is responsible for filing Comer 
Records with the Los Angeles County Surveyor for all monuments disturbed as 
part of construction. 

41. The Applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit from the Public Works 
Deprutment prior to conducting any off-site improvements. 

Resolution No. 18-14 11 
Case No. 18-23 



42. 

43. 

44. 

45. 

46. 

All required water meters, meter service changes and/or fire protection lines shall 
be installed by the Applicant. Any new water meters shall be installed in the 
parkway. 

Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy, the Applicant shall replace, to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer, any damaged street improvements, such as 
sidewalk, curb and gutter and driveway. The required ultimate street 
improvements shall be subject to the review and approval of the City Engineer. 
All service lines shall be in operation. 

The Applicant shall complete aU required Public Works conditions of approval. 
No Certificate of Occupancy shall be given until all conditions of approval from 
the Public Works Department have been met. 

The Applicant shall remove existing street tree located in the front of 15329 
Hawthorne Boulevard. 

The Applicant shall install one (1) 36" box street tree(s) per APWA standards 
along 15329 Hawthorne Boulevard. Tree species is to be determined by the Public 

---- - - - --- works-Department. Applicant sna11ol5ram all necessm·y pe1ID.1tsfor planting o----
new tree(s). Exact location of tree(s) shall be determined at the time of pe1mit 
issuance. 

4 7. The Applicant shall constmct tree well covers per APW A standards for existing 
and proposed street trees. 

48. The project shall be subject to the City's Standard Urban St01m water Mitigation 
Plan (SUSMP) Ordinance. 

49. Prior to permit issuance the Applicant shall submit a copy of the Los Angeles 
County Fire Department Clem·ance letter. 

50. The Applicant shall remove and relocate existing street light, tree, water and 
electric box along 15329 Hawthorne Blvd to the satisfaction of the Public Works 
Director. 

Additional Conditions: 

51. The Applicant shall install a construction fence around the periphery of the 
project site prior to the demolition and/or construction of any building or 
structure. 

52. A trash receptacle shall be provided outside of the business and emptied every 
day. 

Resolution No. 18-14 12 
Case No. 18-23 



53. Al1y graffiti found on the Property shall be removed within 24 hours of discovery 
to the satisfaction of the Community Development DiJ:ector. 

54. The Applicant shall comply with the City Noise Ordinance, Chapter 8.20 of the 
Lawndale Municipal Code, and the City's regulations regarding loitering and 
curfew. 

55. Occupancy limits shall be clearly posted on the Property. The occupancy shall not 
exceed the number of occupants mandated by the Building Division and Fire 
Depa1iment. 

56. The Applicant shall maintain a valid business license as required by LMC Chapter 
5.05. 

57. The Applicant shall not obstruct or block any emergency entrance/ exit doors at 
all times. 

58. Applicant shall work with the city in obtaining 12arking_ permits for overnight 
parking for hotel quest. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED TIDS 24th DAY OF OCTOBER 2018. 

I, Sean M. Moore, AICP, Community Development Director for the City of Lawndale, 
California, do hereby ce1iify that the foregoing Resolution No. 18-14 was duly approved and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Lawndale at a regular meeting of said 
Commission held on the 24th day of October 2018 by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Moller, Martinez, Cuevas, Smith 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

~ 
ean M. Moore AICP, Community Development Director 

Resolution No. 18-14 
Case No. 18-23 

13 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

EXHIBIT B 

Vicinity Map 

8 



VICINITY MAP 



AGENDA ITEM F-1 

Exhibit C 

Site Pictures 

9 







--- -- -----------------













-----



/.' -
l 







.. 
--

.,_,,.,.,,,.:J,-> 
- J ~~ 









I 
( 

/, 
I ' 

I • 









--- =-------------------------



'"'•- ... r- -
- • •---• .. h • ~ .:..:...:,.• \•- • _•,.•;,:• 

• #-~; · ...... • •• :.- . · • • 

-.~~- .! •. 

·,·;~~:··•:.:. 



- -------'-

~ h" 

~:~:: 







































) 





AGENDA ITEM F-2 

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 10, 2024 

TO: Honorable Chair and Members of the Planning Commission 

REVIEWED BY: Jared Chavez, Community Development Manage~ 

PREPARED BY: Jose Hernandez, Associate Planner Bl{ 
RE: CASE NO. 24-04 A REQUEST FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

FOR THE ON-SITE SALE/CONSUMPTION OF BEER, WINE AND 
DISTILLED SPIRITS (TYPE 47 LICENSE) FOR AN EXISTING 
RESTAURANT (KING OF WINGS) LOCATED AT 14406 
HAWTHORNE BOULEVARD.AND FINDING OF EXEMPTION 
FROM CEQA. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The applicant is requesting approval of a special use permit for a type 47 alcohol 
license to sell/serve beer, wine and distilled spirits for on-site consumption to an existing 
commercial restaurant (King of Wings) located at 14406 Hawthorne Boulevard, within 
the (GC) General Commercial zone (the "Project"). 

APPLICANT: 

PROPERTY 
OWNER: 

LOCATION: 

APN: 

ZONE: 

Cynthia Ferreira 
1921 Speyer Lane, Unit B 
Redondo Beach, CA 90728 

Lawndale, LLC 

14406 Hawthorne Boulevard (the "Subject Property") 

4077-009-001 

GC (General Commercial) 

1 



GENERAL PLAN: 

SPECIFIC PLAN: 

SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT 

ZONING CODE: 

AGENDA ITEM F-2 

The City's General Plan designates the proposed site as 
"Downtown Commercial," which is designed to provide urban nodes 
with commercial activity. The designation is applied specifically to 
the northerly side of the Hawthorne Boulevard and Manhattan 
Beach Boulevard intersection, and on the southerly side of the 
Marine Avenue and Hawthorne Boulevard intersection. 

The Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan overlay designates the 
subject property as "General Commercial ," which is intended to 
provide a broad range of commercial activities, including retail, 
restaurants, service commercial, personal service, lodging, and 
office uses. 

Pursuant to section 17.28.100 of the Lawndale Municipal Code, a 
special use permit is required for a business to sell or serve 
alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises. 

The subject property is zoned GC (General Commercial). The 
Lawndale Municipal Code allows restaurants to serve beer, wine 
and distilled spirits subject to the approval of a special use permit. 

ENVIRONMENTAL The proposed activity is not a significant impact on the environment 
ASSESSMENT: and is exempt pursuant to section 15061 (b)3 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines. 

SURROUNDING 
LAND USES 
AND ZONING: North: 

South : 
East: 
West: 

ANALYSIS 

City of Hawthorne and R-3 (Limited Multiple 
Residence) 
NC (Neighborhood Commercial) 
I (Institutional Zone 
GC (General Commercial) Zone 

The applicant is requesting permission to have a type 47 alcohol license to sell/serve 
beer, wine and distilled spirits for on-site consumption to an existing commercial 
restaurant (King of Wings) located at 14406 Hawthorne Boulevard. Pursuant to section 
17 .28.100 of the Lawndale Municipal Code, a special use permit is required for a 
business to sell or serve alcoholic beverages for consumption on premises. 

2 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

COMPLIANCE WITH DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: 

The existing restaurant is subject to the standards of the General Commercial (GC) 
zoning district, Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan and certain sections of the Lawndale 
Municipal Code, including but not limited to Sections 17 .28.100 and 17 .28.104 (Sale 
and consumption of alcoholic beverages; and on-sale special use permits, respectively). 
The key issues for this application are land use, proximity to sensitive land uses, and 
the general welfare of the City's residents. 

LAND USE: 

The Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan and the Lawndale Municipal Code allow 
restaurants that serve beer, wine and distilled spirits for onsite consumption within the 
General Commercial (GC) zone subject to the approval of a special use permit. 

GENERAL WELFARE: 

Establishments that sell alcoholic beverages can sometimes be the source of several 
negative impacts and nuisances. Negative side effects associated with such uses may 
include, but are not limited to potential noise problems, litter, loitering, drunk driving, 
interference with children on the way to and from school, encouragement of crime, and 
defacement of buildings. Accordingly, the Planning Commission may approve a special 
use permit application for on-site sale beer, wine, and spirits if the occurrence of such 
establishment does not adversely impact the public health, safety, comfort, 
convenience, and general welfare of the City. Additionally, the Planning Commission 
may approve a special use permit application for on-site sale of alcohol if the Planning 
Commission finds that the establishment meets the definition of a restaurant and meets 
the following provisions: 

1. Approval of the application will not result in the number of on-sale general 
alcohol outlets in the city exceeding three establishments within the city. 
Including the applicant's restaurant business, there will only be two (2) general 
alcohol outlets establishments in the city. 

2. The property line of the subject site is at least three hundred feet from the 
closest property line of any school, public park, or public playground or church 
premises. The subject property is not within three hundred feet of or adjacent to 
any sensitive land-uses. 

3. The property line of the subject site is at least three hundred feet from the 
property line of any other on-sale location. The subject property is not within 
three hundred feet from the property line of any other on-site sale location. 

3 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: 

The subject business (King of Wings) meets the aforementioned provIsIons and 
therefore qualifies for a Special Use Permit authorizing the on-site sale of beer, wine 
and spirits. King of Wings is a dining establishment that is primarily engaged in the sale 
and preparation of traditional American Food. Accordingly, the establishment has 
suitable kitchen facilities for preparing an assortment of foods and meals, therefore, 
meeting the definition of a restaurant pursuant to section 17 .28.102 of the Lawndale 
Municipal Code. The restaurant is within the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan area 
and is not directly adjacent to any sensitive land uses (parks, schools, churches or 
playgrounds). Currently, there is one (1) existing on-sale Type 47 general alcohol 
establishments in operation within the City of Lawndale, and the Municipal Code allows 
the operation of three (3) general alcohol establishments within the City. The existing 
restaurant business with an active general alcohol sale is Leo's Mexican Food, located 
at 16006 Inglewood Avenue. 

4 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

CONCLUSION: 

The approval of a special use permit for the Project meets the provIsIons of Code 
Section 17 .28.104 (B) which requires that the "(1.) Approval of the application will not 
result in the number of on-sale beer and wine outlets in the City exceeding 3 
establishments within the City. (2.) The property line of the subject site is at least three 
hundred feet from the closest property line of any school, public park, or public 
playground or church premises. (3) The property line of the subject site is at least three 
hundred feet from the property line of any other on-sale location." 

Currently, the City of Lawndale has one on-site sale general alcohol license 
establishment in operation within the City and the potential to have 2 additional 
establishments with general alcohol licenses. Accordingly, the approval of a Type 47 
license in conjunction with an existing restaurant will not exceed the number of 
establishments allowed under the Municipal Code. Based on the number of general 
alcohol license establishments that are currently in operation within the City, that the 
business is not adjacent to any sensitive lands uses. Staff recommends approval of the 
special use permit because all of the requirements under Section 17.28.104 (B) of the 
Lawndale Municipal Code are met. 

AGENCY REVIEW 

Municipal Service Department 

L.A. County Sheriffs Department 

L.A. County Department of Public Works 
Building and Safety Division 

Centinela Valley Union High School District 

Lawndale Elementary School District 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

No Response 

No Response 

No Comments 

No Response 

No Response 

The proposed project is categorically exempt from the provIsIons of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 "Existing Facilities" of the 
California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA ") Guidelines. 

5 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

PUBLIC REVIEW: 

Notices of a public hearing were posted on the bulletin board outside City Hall and 
published in the Daily Breeze on March 30, 2024. As of the writing of this staff report, 
no comments from the public have been received concerning the proposed ordinance. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Planning Commission: 

1) Conduct a public hearing; 

2) Find and determine that the proposed Project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Section 15061 (b) of the CEQA 
Guidelines; and 

3) Adopt Resolution No. 24-05 setting forth findings of fact relative to the submitted 
application. 

EXHIBITS: "A" Plans 
"B" List of on-sale alcohol establishments in the City 
"C" List of churches, schools and parks 
"D" Map of churches, school and park locations 
"E" Application 
"F" Vicinity Map 
"G" Resolution No. 24-05 

6 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

Plans 

7 



G
ENERAL NO

TES 
rrR

Q
A

C
T

O
R

 TO
 FU

R
N

IS
H

 A
N

O
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

 S
A

N
rT

A
R

Y
 F

A
C

IU
T

IE
S

 A
S

 
IR

E
D

 D
U

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TIO
N

, 

. R
E

Q
U

IR
!!:D

 W
O

R
K

 A
N

O
 A

L
L

 R
E

P
A

IR
 O

F
 D

A
M

A
G

E
S

 O
N

 A
N

O
 O

F
F

 P
U

B
L

IC
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 

N
A

U
C

, C
U

R
B

S
, S

T
R

E
E

T
, E

T
C

.} O
C

C
U

R
IN

G
 A

S
 A

 R
E

S
U

LT
 O

F
 C

O
N

sm
u

cT
IO

N
 

E
D

U
R

E
, E

TC
., S

H
A

Ll. B
E

 D
O

N
E

 A
C

C
O

R
D

IN
G

 TO
 G

O
V

E
R

N
IN

G
 R

E
G

U
LA

TIO
N

S
, 

~~~~f:ic~o~~~HA~~[~,P~ ~
~

~
R

K
T

O
 B

E
 C

O
N

S
IS

T
E

N
T

 W
IT

H
 

~
o

:.c
~

P
C

R
~

:g
~

N
~

~
;~

~
~

~
~

N
g

~
~

~
~

~
:S

L
,_

~
~

~
~

E
. 

.Y
IN

G
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

U
R

B
S

, S
T

R
E

E
T

S
, S

ID
E

W
A

L
K

S
, E

T
C

., lR
E

N
C

H
IN

G
 B

A
C

K
 

~
~

::A
R

IN
G

, E
TC

., IN
S

ID
E

 A
N

D
 O

U
TS

ID
E

 O
F P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 LIN
E

S
 S

H
A

LL 

~
~
W
o
~
i
i
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
i
~
~
~
~
W
l
N
O
S
 F

O
R

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 W
O

R
K

 

, R
O

O
F

 D
R

A
IN

S
 D

IS
C

H
A

R
G

IN
G

 R
A

IN
 W

A
T

E
R

 W
fT

H
IN

 25 F
E

E
T

 O
F P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 L

IN
E

S
 

R
E

E
T

S
, S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 C
O

N
O

TT10N
E

6 T
O

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 W

TTH
O

U
T S

H
E

E
T

 F
LO

W
 O

V
E

R
 

IA
LK

.S
. S

ee'. B
U

ILD
IN

G
, P

LU
M

B
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
M

L
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

. 

>V
IC

E
 P

E
D

E
S

TR
I.A

N
 P

R
O

TE
C

TIO
N

 B
A

R
R

IC
A

D
E

S
 A

N
O

/O
R

 C
A

N
O

P
IE

S
 A

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 
fo

~
~

A
L

 A
U

T
H

O
R

m
E

S
, O

R
 A

S
 N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

 F
O

R
 P

E
O

E
S

T
R

lA
N

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

. S
E

E
 

W
O

R
K

 M
A

T
e

R
lA

L
S

, r.E
T

H
O

O
S

, E
T

C
., S

H
A

L
L

 C
O

N
F

O
R

M
 T

O
 A

L
l. G

O
V

E
R

N
IN

G
 

s, R
E

G
U

LA
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 A
G

E
N

C
IE

S
. 

fE
R

N
IN

G
 C

O
D

E
S

 A
N

D
 A

R
E

 t'E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 A

B
.D

 IN
S

P
E

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 D

IC
T

A
 TE

 S
IZ

E
. 

Q
U

A
N

T
IT

Y
 A

N
O

 LO
C

A
T

IO
N

S
 O

F R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 P

O
R

T
A

B
LE

 F
IR

E
 E

X
T

IN
G

U
IS

H
E

R
S

. (N
IC

I 

,S
S

 A
N

D
 G

LA
ZJN

G
 TO

 C
O

M
P

LY
W

T
T

H
 111 C

F
R

 P
A

R
T

 2102 O
F C

O
N

S
U

M
E

R
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

 
'Y

 C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

, 
>N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

U
. V

IS
rT

 T
H

E
 JO

B
S

rT
E

 A
N

O
 V

E
R

lF
Y

 A
L

L
 O

IM
E

H
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
O

 

m
~

~
~

!e
~

:~
~

C
fo

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

O
J
S

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

! 

~Jt;H
~~~~81~

i 0e~~?~
5D

~
~

:
~

~
:
~

 l~~~~~R. 
•N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

L
L

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

 A
L

L
 C

IE
U

N
G

 O
R

 W
A

L
L

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 P
A

N
E

L!!\ O
R

 
3S D

O
O

R
S

) A
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
B

J B
Y

 T
H

E
 A

IR
 C

O
N

D
m

O
N

IN
G

, P
LU

M
B

IN
G

 A
N

D
 

"R
IC

A
L S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, A
S

 w
a

L
 A

S
 LA

N
D

LO
R

D
'S

 S
H

E
L

L
 B

LD
G

.,,IF
 N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

. 

~8~~~J~;:: ~
i
~
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 LIN

E
 O

F C
O

LU
M

N
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
A

M
S

, F
A

C
E

 O
F 

L O
C

C
U

P
lA

B
lc A

R
E

A
S

 O
F TH

E
 B

U
ILD

IN
O

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
LLY

 V
E

N
T

ILA
T

E
D

. 

~
~
 M

~
::1

~
~

.!:~
~

:~
G

e
 P

eR
 H

O
U

R
 S

H
A

L
L

 N
O

T
 B

E
 LE

S
S

 n
w

n
w

o
 

L T
O

ILE
T

 R
O

O
M

S
 S

H
A

LL B
E

 V
E

N
T

ILA
T

E
D

 B
Y

 5 M
IN

U
T

E
 A

IR
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 B

Y
 

).N
IC

A
L M

E
A

N
S

. S
f!: M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

, 

iN
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 T

O
 O

B
T

A
IN

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

 P
E

R
M

m
! FR

O
M

 B
U

ILD
IN

G
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 

1W
iti.~

"8
8

~
U

~
~

b
1

tis
A

~
i~

~
~

fif~
F

'l,'R
k
~

tli\.'tW
.k

f 1~8Rc~fJi.rr A
T

 C
IT

Y
. 

:ise D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S
 W

lL
L

 IN
D

IC
A

T
E

 TH
E

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L S
C

O
P

E
 O

F T
H

E
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 IN

 T
E

R
M

S
 

C
H

IT
E

C
T

\JR
A

L D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

C
E

P
TS

. T
H

E
 D

IM
E

M
T

IO
N

, M
A

.JO
R

 A
R

C
H

JT
E

C
T

\JR
A

L 

E.~~~~!S~~= 3p~!f=~~~~!~i~:::;· 
!C

T. O
N

 T
H

E
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 T

H
E

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L S
C

O
P

E
 D

E
S

C
R

IB
E

O
,A

N
Y

W
O

R
K

 O
R

 
U

A
LS

 N
O

T
 D

JR
E

C
T

I.Y
 N

O
TE

D
 IN

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
S

, B
U

T
 N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

 
~

~
~

·g
::~

:A
R

E
IM

P
U

E
D

A
N

D
A

R
E

T
O

 B
E

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 F

O
R

 A
S

 fJ: 

CONTRACTOR NOTES 
~

J
IJ

~
~

~
~

~
.;W

i:~
~

~
g

~
a

J
~

~
~

~
~

R
M

~
~

~
~

r
F

i'i.z
~

e
 

~~E~:€ii&iJ~;i~~1!~lP~~1i~i~i: 
:f IN

 C
O

M
P

LY
IN

G
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
S

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

l!N
T

S
. 

• 
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 O

B
T

A
IN

 P
E

R
M

rTS
 A

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 G

O
V

E
R

N
IN

Q
 

!JT
E

S
 r'O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

. 

m
lC

A
L

, M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L A
N

D
 P

LU
M

B
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 S
H

A
U

. B
E

 D
O

N
E

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 

~
lt

~
~

ie
=

T
li~

~
o

~
r
~

:
G

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

~
~

·~
K

D
A

~
6

d
'A

IN
 

!
!
'~

~
:
t
!
:
A

;
\
~

R
~

~
~

N
M

~
:
:
:
:
~

:
[
A

~
~

:
~

=
~

~
~

R
 

:J~t=o'::~~~:~=~~lJ::~:~~~~:rNCEOF 
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

S
H

A
LL R

E
Q

U
IR

E
 S

U
C

H
 C

O
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
 O

F T
H

E
 V

A
R

IO
U

S
 T

R
A

D
E

S
 A

S
 

IE
 N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

 TO
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

 E
A

C
H

 A
N

O
 E

V
E

R
Y

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

n
te

 W
O

R
K

, !:V
l!N

 
~

~
~

~
J
~

flC
A

L
L

Y
 IN

D
IC

A
T

I!D
, N

O
T

E
D

 O
R

 D
E

T
A

ILE
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 

if i~l5~jiflii¥st~ri:fr1~~1ki~:~f
0 

!C
T

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 T
H

E
 IN

S
T

A
U

.A
T

IO
N

 O
F A

N
Y

 W
O

R
K

. 

H
E

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

ILIT
Y

 O
F T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 TO
 A

D
H

E
R

E
 TO

 A
L

L
 A

P
P

LIC
A

B
LE

 
:M

E
N

T
S

 O
F C

A
L-O

S
H

A
 P

E
R

T
A

IN
IN

G
 TO

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
, 

~
~

~
~

c
:~

;~
~

;:-
~

u
:T

L
~

~
:~

~
~

E
E

T
S

A
N

D
S

ID
E

W
A

L
K

S
. 

:O
N

T
R

A
.C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

LL P
R

O
T

E
C

T
 A

ll P
R

IV
A

T
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

LLS
 

UJ.. M
A

IN
T

A
IN

 T
H

E
M

 O
U

R
JN

G
 T

H
~

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 O
F

 T
H

!: W
O

R
K

, A
N

O
 S

H
A

L
L

 R
E

P
A

IR
 

~
~

i_
 TO

 lliE
 W

O
R

K
, A

N
O

 S
H

A
L

L
 R

E
P

A
IR

 A
L

L
 D

A
M

A
G

E
S

 A
T

 H
IS

 

~
~

~
~

!
':

N
~

~
:
:
e

~
~

~
~

~
:
=

:
c
~

:
!
~

~
-~

~
R

M
E

O
 B

Y
 

IC
U

JD
E

 A
L

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

, F
IX

T
U

R
E

S
, E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 LA
B

O
R

. 

~~~~~~;E~~cs~:~~';~sc.J:~~cirn:.t_~~~ ~"'!:~~~ O
R

 

~
~
:
~
~
~
)
T
O
 M

A
T

C
H

 A
N

D
 B

E
 U

N
N

O
TIC

A
15LE

 F
R

O
M

 lliE
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 

"R
A

C
TO

R
 S

H
A

U
. P

R
O

V
ID

E
 E

N
O

U
G

H
 S

H
O

R
IN

G
S

 A
N

O
 B

R
.A

C
lN

G
S

 TO
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 A
L

L
 

U
C

T
IO

N
LO

A
D

S
. 

'D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 A

N
O

 O
E

T
A

IU
I S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 P
R

IO
R

 m
 IN

S
T

A
LLA

T
IO

N
.. 

"R
A

C
TO

R
 TO

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 A

P
P

R
O

V
!!O

 W
A

T
E

R
 P

R
O

O
F

IN
G

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 A
N

D
 

~
~

~
N

~
~

:1
;;.,E

N
~

~
•A

~
~

~
~

:
~

A
~

O
:
~

~
:
:
'w

:
~

;
 A

~
,
 

!~~ if~
u

N
:::, ~

~
=

~
:::~

~
~

~
~

~
~

:~
.R

A
C

E
D

 TO
 P

R
5

\,ID
E

 

'R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 M

A
IN

T
A

IN
&

. U
P

D
A

T
E

 R
E

C
O

R
D

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S
 O

F T
l£

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 
H

O
U

T
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 O

E
LJV

E
R

Y
T

O
 O

W
N

E
R

 A
N

O
 LA

N
D

LO
R

D
 A

T
 T

H
E

 
TIO

N
 O

F T
H

E
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
. 

IE
L C

l!R
T

il"IC
A

T
I! IS

 l'U
!Q

U
I~

 l'O
ftA

L
L

 &
ITI!: B

U
ILT

Jl'l!.N
r.S

T
R

A
T

IO
N

D
 

SITE PLAN 

R
O

S
E

C
R

A
N

S
 A

 W
N

lrE
 

r 
r~~~~\~'\~\~ \,i'1fii!1!1f!f fwf f 

N
.A

.P. 
1C

: 
---=•~;,·--IE 

N
.A

.P
, 

fr-··-:::::---
i 

1
1

r


P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 R
E

S
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

 
14406 H

A
W

T
H

O
R

N
E

 B
L

V
D

. 

i-~~-~~..J L~.~:~Jt~:~: ___ / 

..__ _
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_ 

_L
A

W
N

D
_A

L
E

_.__C
_A

_9Jl.2fil~
--
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~

 

R
equ

ired A
gency R

eferra
l C

learances: 
1. T

itle 24 -
electrical &

 m
echanical 

2. Industrial W
aste 

3. P
ublic H

ea
lth 

4. C
onstruction D

em
o P

lan (Law
ndale

) 
5. A

O
M

D
 {a

ir quality perm
it checklist) 

K
IN

G
 O

F
 W

IN
G

S
 -

K
IT

C
H

E
N

 
0 

F
L

O
O

R
P

L
A

N
 

__ 111_6
"=1

'-0
" 

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 _ 

STAM
P 

B
E

S
T

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

P
<T

 P
R

A
C

T
IC

E
S

 

F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
• 

-
-

S
to

n
n

 W
ator P

o
llu

tio
n

 C
ontral R

oqulrom
tm

ts fO
f' C

onstructJon A
ctivitie

s 
M

inim
um

 W
ator Q

uality P
rotection R

oquirum
onts fo

r A
ll D

evclopm
ont C

onstructlon 
• 

P
rojocts/C

•rtlfica
tlo

n
 sta

m
m

a
n

t 

T
h

• folfow
lno Is Intended u 

m
fn

fm
um

 n
a

tu
 a

r as an att.ichm
ent to

r b
u

ildin
g

 and gradJng p
l•n

s •M
 

"'f)tH
o

n
t th

• m
inim

um
 .sr.ndards o

f tp
lo

d
 h

o
u

n
kH

p
ln

g
 that m

u
st b

e
 lm

pJ•m
•ntad on alt cons1n1cll~

 
a

lto
,s~

rd
le

u
i,f.sb

:e
.(A

p
p

H
e

sto
a

J/p
crm

lb
) 

Ev
al}'atrorti.hculdbemadotcellmlnati,thadlschargeofntl0-61onnwal&rtromlh■pro)ad

~le.t■
ltlmo■, 

E
roded sod

lm
onl!I and G

~
ar poDut■/rul m

~
 bi, ,..lalned 011 site and m

a
y not bo tru

m
p

o
r1

~
 from

 lho alt, 
vla

G
h

o
a

tflo
w

,G
W

D
lo

ll,Q
n

X
ld

r:llra
,~

d
r.llru

:lg
o

a
,u

n
:0

1
1

0
rw

tn
d

. 
: 

S
tockpB

oG
 of a.arth and othor conG

tructlon rulal.tod m
alorbJs m

ust bo pratocted lrom
 bolnl3 traisportD

d l'ttln 
th

e
islto

b
ylh

a
fo

rco
so

fw
ln

d
o

r~
l.rlr. 

F
u

e
1

:a
,o

R
,,:so

fw
n

b
a

n
d

o
th

a
rto

xlcm
D

lo
ria

b
m

u
stb

e
!!lo

rcd
ln

a
cco

rd
a

n
ce

w
llh

lh
e

lrlb
lln

g
a

n
d

1
1

re
in

o
tto

 
cont:im

lnnto tho soa ■ndaurtacewator.1.AII 111ppm
vodal0,..ge corrtafner.i:a,i to

b
e

 prol.ctad rrom
 th

, 
w

o:uhor. SpUl:1 m
uct bo cloanod up lm

m
adl11to)y and dlG

poG
od of In :a propa

r m
a

m
o

r. S
pllla m

a
y not b• 

w
a

sh
a

d
ln

to
lh

o
d

n
lin

a
ca

•ya
ta

m
. 

E
xcess o

rW
!la

a
 co

n
cn

tll m
a

y not be W
i!S

hod Into the pubU
c w

rry or a
n

y other d1;1!naga ay.,tem
. P

rovl&
IO

N
 

sh
a

l ba m
;K

la torot:lln conC
l'llte

\W
lim

 en sit• untll th
a

yc:in
 be dlspo:icd o

ru
 ,oad 'M

Iiite. 

• 
T

rash 
and con£tN

ctlon ro
l:atod so

ld
 ~
 m

ust bo dopo
sltod 

1nm
 II covorod 

rK
O

p
b

cl• to pniV
'lrt 

co
n

tllm
ln

a
tlo

n
o

fra
in

w
n

te
ra

n
d

d
b

p
a

r.sa
lb

yw
h

ct 

S
a

d
lm

e
n

b
 and olhor m

atol'm
b m

a
y not bo tm

ckod 
from

 tho :Ila
 b

y vah
ld

o
 truffle. T

ho ccm
tru

ctlo
• 

antr.anca rm
dw

ays m
ust bo atablllzed so

 es lo
 Inhibit udlm

11t1b frum
 be

in
g dopo

slll!Jd Into the public w
ai,. 

=
~

~
lz

ll dopollltlori: m
u

~
 ba cw

apl up 1m
m

odlolaly a
n

d
 m

11y not b
o

 w
ashod dow

n by natn o
r o

lh
• 

A
n

y2
io

p
e

sw
llh

cb
tu

ri>
o

d
:so

lb
o

r.d
e

n
u

d
e

d
a

fvcg
cta

tlo
n

m
t.t:ltb

o
sto

b
!lizo

d
1

0
o

sto
ln

h
lbrtero:ilonbyw

1nd 
o

n
d

w
a

ta
r. 

• 

,: 

VICINITY M
AP 

FIRE DEPT. NOTES 

'-~:~~~::r~:lErf~~~\!~E.J:~E~~T 
W

TT1i T
H

E
 B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D
 C

O
LO

R
 O

F T
H

E
 S

TR
IJC

'TlJR
E

 O
R

 G
LA

S
S

 

~~::~~~~~~~~~~~ A
N

D
 S

P
ecU

'lC
A

T
IO

N
S

" O
N

 P
A

G
E

 8
l 

~6~Ti i
i
~
~
~
~
l
~
:
1
~
~
~
~
~

-ANO C
O

N
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 H
A

N
D

B
O

O
K

" 

2. ~
1

~
1

:c8
~

il°N
R

J ;
~

E
[
~

=
~

t
~

=
A

o
~

 ~~
4

1
t,u

~
C

E
E

D
 

75 F
E

E
T

 O
F T

R
A

V
B

. D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

O
U

T
 lliE

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 (F

IR
E

 

l, ~~~f ~
g

:;;~
N

S
 TO

 T
H

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 l'IR

E
 S

P
R

IN
K

L
!R

 A
N

D
/O

R
 LIF

E
 

~
~
~
~
=
~
:
,
.
c
P
~
~
f
F
~
E
o
~
~
~
:
~
:
t
~
~

.~
~
·
 

C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 S

E
T

S
 O

F P
LA

N
S

 F
O

R
 E

A
C

H
 A

F
F

E
C

T
E

D
 S

Y
S

T
a

l M
U

S
T

 B
E

 

t
l
~

~
~

l
~

i
=

~
~

J
J
~

~
~

=
~

E
S

~
~

•
F

E
E

T
. 

1'!!:Q
U

IR
E

T
H

E
 IN

S
T

A
LLA

T
IO

N
 O

F A
 C

H
E

M
JC

A
LS

U
P

R
E

S
S

IO
N

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

. 
C

O
M

P
L

Y
lN

G
W

tn
,I T

H
E

 U
L

 :JOO S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

. S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

 P
L.A

H
 R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 

P
E

R
M

C
T lS

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 B

Y
IF

R
O

M
 T

H
E

 F
IR

E
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T. 
K

IT
C

H
E

N
 F

IR
E

 E
X

T
IN

G
U

IS
H

IN
G

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 M
U

S
T

 B
E

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 

F
IR

E
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 A

N
D

 A
L

A
R

M
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
. 

5
. exrr D

O
O

R
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 !I!: O

P
E

N
.A

B
LE

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 IN

S
ID

E
 W

JT
H

O
U

T
T

H
E

 U
S

E
 

O
F A

 K
E

Y
, T

O
O

L. K
N

O
W

LE
D

G
E

 O
R

 S
P

E
C

IA
L E

F
F

O
R

T
. IN

 G
R

O
U

P
 B

 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
IE

S
, K

E
Y

4..C
'IC

IO
N

G
 H

A
R

D
W

A
R

I! M
A

Y
B

E
 U

S
E

D
 O

N
 T

H
!: M

A
.IN

 
exrr D

O
O

R
 O

N
LY

, P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 T

liE
R

E
 IS

 A
 S

IG
N

 A
.B

O
V

E
E

 S
A

ID
 D

O
O

R
 TO

 
S

T
A

T
E

, -rH
IS

 D
O

O
R

 TO
 R

E
M

A
IN

 U
N

LO
C

K
E

D
 W

H
E

N
 B

U
ILD

IN
G

 rs O
C

C
U

P
IE

D
.-

(C
F

C
 !E

C
. 1

0
0

!.1.t.3
 #2) 

e. P
R

O
V

ID
I! A

 lY
P

.I! K
 l'IR

!: !:X
T

IN
G

U
IS

H
eR

 W
IT

H
IN

 .lO
 FE

E
T O

F C
O

O
K

IN
G

. 

PROJECT SUM
M

ARY 
GOVERNING JURISDICTIO

N
: 

PROJECT SUM
M

ARY
: 

PROJECT NAM
E 

&AD
D

R
ESS

: 

O
W

NER(S): 

LOS ANGELES CO
UNTY 

R
E

H
D

V
A

TlO
N

O
FE

X
IS

TIH
G

R
E

S
TA

U
R

A
K

TS
l'A

C
E

 
NEW

O
W

NERS.NEW
BUSINESSNAM

E. 

KINS OF W
ING

S 
14406 HAW

THO
RNE BLVD 

LAW
NDALE, CA 90260 

m
\H

~m
l\ 

APEX FOODSERVICE DESIG
N 

A
P

E
X

 
FO

O
DSERVICE DESIG

N 

(310)800-5548 

JHayon@
apextsd.com

 

DESIGNER
: 

~
i,:.A

~
E

A
, 

~~G
tf:air., ~

:
 I 1

-
-
-
-
-
1

-
-
-
-
--
-
-
-
-

EXISTING
 USE: 

OCCUPANCY GROUP: 
OCCUPANT LOAD

: 

BUILDING
 TYPE: 

APPLICABLE CODES: 

...,;o..'f,,.,';,-;;:...;-i'i,~ 
N

!.T
, 

C:....,.rjl 
.::e

s,A
!-l f'?.r--t,FT 

.~
~

T
G

t\e
N

,/~
t' 

(C
:. .i'S

J
 

'6
\J!>

~
,.t'l£

{'-
N

11T 
(_

4
0

.-:z.G
,) 

m
E

 11-B ONE HOUR 
ONE STORY BUILDING

 
A

ll W
ORK S

H
A

ll BE DONE IN 
C

O
M

PLIAN
C

EW
ITH

2016C
BC

 

I 
~

~
,_t~

~
uC

Jfv ~
fu

m
~

~
&

A
N

C
E

S
 1

1
-
-
-
-
-
1

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
+

-
-
-

SHEET INDEX 
A-0.D

 : COVER SHEET 
A-0.1 : HANDICAP AC

C
ESSIBlllITY NOTES 

A·0.2 : GENERAL NOTES 
A·1.0

:FLO
O

RPLAN 
A

•1.1: EQ
UIPM

ENT SCHEDULE 
• 

A·2.0 : ELECTRICAL &
 PLUM

81N6 REQUIREM
ENTS PLAN 

A-3.D
: REFLECTED CEILING PLAN 

A-4.D
: HOOD PLAN 

A-5.D
: EXfTPLAN 

A-6.D
: HANDICAP PLAN &

 OCCUPANT LOAD 

KING O
F W

ING
S 

CO
VER SHEET 

1 oart!fY
 !N

it this docum
ont and 1111 ~tt11chnuw

1ts ...,.,. proparod under m
y d

ra
d

lo
n

 er w
pervlslon ln 11ecordance 

w
ith a 1yslam

 
d

=
lg

n
o

d
 

tD
 

on,uns tha
t qU

111flod 
par:,onnel property gather and ovaluata 

tho 
k'lform

atk:11 
subm

lt1G
d

. 
B

U
G

d on m
y Inquiry o

f Iha par.,:cn o
r parsons w

h
o

 m
anago tho system

 o
r lh

o
&

a
 parsons dlr■dl? 

ro
~

n
=

lb
lo

fo
rg

:a
lh

o
rln

g
th

o
ln

t'o
n

n
o

tb
n

,to
th

a
b

o
llto

fm
ykn

a
v.1

o
d

g
o

1
1

n
d

b
o

llo
r,th

o
k'lfo

ffl1
'1

U
o

n
1

u
b

n
'lltt.od

l1 
trua,occurut.a

.a
n

d
co

m
p

la
b

l. 
l
■mawanithot:wbmllllngfnboandlorln11cc:um:alntormallon

,fDUng
t:oupd.:at. 

tho E
S

C
P

 tc ronact a11TDnt conditions, er fa
lln

g
 tc p10porly andlor oooquatoly lm

plam
ont th

• E
S

C
' m

ay !'M
U

I 
lnroVO

C
11tlon o

fg
ra

d
ln

g
a

n
d

/cro
th

a
rp

a
n

n
b

o
ro

lh
a

ru
n

cU
o

n
, provided b

yla
w

.• 
•. 

, I t~:~; ~~6m~ ~
lZ

i~
:~

C
E

 
ProJectN

um
ber 

KO
W

20-1 
Dale 

06/15/20 

(O
W

naroralJ\hortzoclagetto
fll\a

o
w

n
e

r) 

s
i
p

r
u

m
,
~

-
~

~
~

~
-
~

 
(0

W
n

o
ro

ra
u

th
o

r1
zo

d
a

g
a

n
td

th
a

o
v.n

a
r) 

o,,.,_· _
_

 _ 

-
-
-

,_,__ 
•~=

 
~
~
 

-
·=

 
.,...,, 

_
_

 I 

~L~~:m~AE~~~~w~NG 
Tlll.E

24 

Drawn by 
JO

NATHAN HAYO
N 

Checked by 
JO

NATHAN HAYO
N 

A
-

0.00 
S

cale 
1

/4"=
1

' 



)P
E

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

: 

P
L

A
C

E
 C

O
U

N
T

E
R

T
O

P
S

 O
N

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
A

R
 

.P
A

IR
 D

A
M

A
G

E
D

 D
R

Y
W

A
L

L
 

IN
T

 W
A

L
L

S
 

:M
O

V
E

 D
R

O
P

 C
E

ILIN
G

 IN
 S

E
A

T
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
 

~
!
'

cc· 

:P
A

IR
 A

N
D

 P
A

IN
T

 D
R

Y
W

A
L

L
 O

N
 C

E
ILIN

G
 IN

 S
E

A
T

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 

:~~g~ gt~~~DsfJ~~~J~~ g~~~'f:m
-qr-n!E t\o

u
~

c/1
"'1

 T
crtl=-1-l 

:P
L

A
C

E
 3 C

O
M

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 S
IN

K
 W

IT
H

 ~
~

IF
 C

O
M

P
LIA

N
T

 
,T

A
L

L
 P

E
N

D
A

N
T

 LIG
H

T
S

 IN
 S

E
A

T
IN

G
 ~

E
A

 F
R

O
M

 
]S

T
IN

G
 E

LE
C

T
R

IC
A

L 
•. 

E
P

L
A

C
E

 O
LD

 W
A

T
E

R
 H

E
A

T
E

R
 W

IT
H

 N
E

W
't.,\N

K
L

E
S

S
 

:IN
G

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
LU

M
B

IN
G

 
' 

~~t~Ef\~t1:ci'it~~y:~r~i~~~t/j~~:iRi~~ LIN
E

S
 

E
N

O
V

A
T

E
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 B

A
R

 
A

D
D

E
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 TO
 F

R
O

N
T

 B
A

R
 

E
P

L
A

C
E

 H
V

A
C

 D
U

C
T

 IN
 S

E
A

T
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
. 

,J
 

-J ~ 
-~ ~ 
-

I 
oJ 

@
-~

 
a>-H

 =
 

Cl.SH 

"
T

l-
_

II 

I 
I 

' 
~r=-==.:l 

~

II 

ICE 
1J 
11 

11 

I: 
(E

)W
A

L
U

<
 

[: 
I 

N
O

 C
H

A
N

G
E C

C
.O

L
E

R
/ 

1 l 
I 

11 
I 

11 
I 

11 
I 

11 

<
£

 
,
_

_
_

_
_

_
 

'I 

~=:=,::~~ 
n

""""-'=
~

~
;;:: 

I 0 0□
0
0u

0
 0u

0 
0

0
 
D
O
D
O
~

□ 
• 

(E
) Sff J1N~ 

··□• 
0 

. 
. 
~
 ... ,._y; 

□
o
o
□

o
□o, □-

JP
Jo

·o 
D

O
 

D
O

 __ JQ
:::ir@

F
l,; .... 

t>
<

,v,.,t. 
• 

• 
: 

-
• _

, 
I,.~

 
'1

'fu
:e

S
ttlt-o

\-D
 

("j)rfj 
1 

• 
-

• 
•• 

1/ 
A

-5
.o

o
 

I 
I 

II 

·-:· 
--

-
·,

-
-"

-
-·. 

-
-

. -,--
• ,E

;,<
_

1
-S

, G
, 

F
A

ito
 

I 
-,,,e

:,~
-~

~
 

' 
,, 

t I 

I 

(E
)F

IN
IS

H
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 

·~
:'°

'•
J
tlr,w

>
 

(E
) N

O
T

E
S

 

1. 
U

'n!H
S

a
.S

ltfK
•~

C
IM

P
A

!tT
M

?N
T

 2
C

l"'X
Jlr1

4
.D

fl!l'W
t1

rD
A

A
l't8

0
A

R
D

A
T

E
A

C
l1

D
fD

 
lfA

C
A

IH
5T

nlE
W

A
U

.rT
M

IJU
H

A
~

A
H

rN
n.C

R
A

L
IIA

C
K

C
P

U
.S

H
H

0W
E

V
B

.,JT
M

\JS
T

IE
 

C
A

P
A

B
l.!!O

F
A

C
C

lilM
O

O
A

T
IH

G
T

H
E

I..A
R

G
U

T
U

T
IH

S
IL

T
O

B
l!W

A
~

l!D
. 

2. A
L

L
S

IN
K

$
A

N
O

L
A

V
A

T
O

JU
e

,IN
l'0

0
0

1
'A

C
IU

T
Y

'M
L

1
.ll~

S
u

,,L
D

W
J
ffiH

O
T

(m
lnlm

111fl1
lO

f) 

A
N

O
C

O
L

D
R

U
H

IN
O

W
A

're
R

U
N

O
l!kP

R
E

S
,u

P
L

 

J"ftl!JIIIX
II0

1
'1

JJC
fT

O
F

!lU
'P

L
Y

IN
G

W
A

.R
M

W
A

T
l!ftl'C

ltA
M

IN
I M

U
M

01'1D
S

fC
O

H
O

S
. 

4,
A

L
L

,.lU
M

D
IN

0.l!!l.!!C
llU

C
A

L
A

H
O

G
.U

U
H

3
S

H
A

U
.IIC

C
O

N
C

U
1

.L
D

W
IT

lflN
 

T
lil!B

U
IL

O
IN

O
S

'lllU
C

T
\JR

E
T

O
A

C
R

E
A

T
E

X
T

E
H

T
A

S
l'O

S
lllllL

 

5. T
ILE

F
LO

O
R

:W
U

.K
A

V
E

A
S

M
O

O
T

H
S

LIV
'"A

C
l!U

H
Dl!!R

A
L

L
l!O

U
IP

M
E

H
T, 

A
H

O
T

H
A

T
n

tl!W
A

L
l('W

A
Y

S
W

IL
L

H
A

Y
!!A

U
O

T
T

l!X
"flU

te
O

H
LY

. 

N
O

T
E

 
A

ll.ltl.k
D

S
l'rlK

S
T

O
H

A
V

I!: 
S

O
A

P
A

H
D

P
A

P
E

A
T

0W
ll..S

. 

N
O

T
E

 
A

U
.fQ

U
IP

J
«

H
T

,lH
Q

.U
D

IH
O

S
H

e
L

~
C

,J
IIU

S
T

lll!.S
U

"°"1
'a

lB
Y

r 
IH

C
H

H
IC

H
_

l!A
!IIL

Y
C

L
V

,N
A

B
U

!.L
E

C
S

,C
D

M
K

R
a

A
L

C
A

tT
O

~
, 

O
R

C
O

M
l"L.E

T
l..Y

S
eA

U
!.C

IH
P

O
srT

IO
H

O
H

(')IH
C

H
H

IQ
H

 
C

c.m
N

U
O

U
:S

LY
C

O
V

l!.O
B

A
C

H
!O

R
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

eC
U

R
D

T
O

P
'A

C
U

T
A

lE
 

~
S

li.O
P

'C
l.2

N
U

N
Q

.E
!C

U
R

\1
1

;D
C

U
.S

S
0

1
S

P
L

Y
C

A
S

E
S

. 

N
O

T
E

 
A

U
.E

O
U

IP
M

!M
T

M
'ln

flll!. 
H

S
F,A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
I 

-
C

lE
C

T
R

IC
A

l.U
LA

P
l"A

D
V

l:01 
O

A
S

A
O

A
.A

l'l"R
O

V
E

D
I 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
 

N
O

T
E

 

~~;;,.~1&~~7ff=~~~~:E~?~:N4::::· 
5

E
W

E
R

U
M

E
.(l.E

..T
R

E
N

C
H

D
R

A
lN

). 

(E
) 3 C

O
M

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 S
IN

K
 N

O
T

E
 

l C
O

M
PA

R
TM

EN
T PO

T S
IN

K
 TO

 B
E

 C
O

N
N

EC
:TED

 
O

IR
E

C
lL

 Y
T

O
 TH

E
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 5Y

ST
E

M
. A

 FL
O

C
I\ D

R
A

IN IS TO
 B

E PR
O

V
ID

ED
 

=
~

~
'~

•
~

J
~

~
l~

~
t
~

~
N

~
6

o
~

~
~

~
~

R
O

V
1

0
E

D
 

-r===='-'--"'c::::;'-_ ·(;;,?
-"

·· -a..::"'0c::
··e;=·--=

-~
!:

l·-
c-;o 

~
1
:
~
~
E
~
o
~
~
'
:
'
!
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
o
 

_...:._~
M

.6
..t-s

=
=

 •···-
• 

-
• 

~
:,~

o
::~

B
E

T
R

A
P

P
E

D
A

N
D

V
E

!'IT
E

D
A

S
R

E
C

U
IR

E
D

B
Y

T
H

IS
 

..
. I .. ,. 1,,.

2
,
,
.
"
"
~

-
,_

_
 _

_
_

_
_

 _ 

_ \ 
__ 1--=..1 S

o
 ~

a
~

kE
 

B
A

A
T

tll"ll'O
S

C
O

U
P

m
R

A
IU

:Q
U

A
R

T
Z

 

A
P

E
X

 
FO

O
DSERVICE DESIG

N 

(310)800-5548 

JH
ayon@

apeJfsd.com
 

D
cscrl_e_tlon 

o
l 

_
_ :_

 -
-
-
-
-
~

-
-
-

-
-:--

-
F

IN
IS

H
E

S
 N

O
T

E
 

~ 
I 

----
-
-

1t-N_O_T_E-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
1

 ,
-
-
-
+

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
+

-
-

~ 
-

I 
t-

N
O

T
E

 

A
H

D
E

U
C

T
itlC

A
.L

C
O

M
N

l!.C
T

lO
N

S
 

IIY
C

leN
!!R

A
l.C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
D

R
I 

NOTE: DOORS ARE TO BE SELF CLO
SING

 
DOOR NOTES 

?. ~
 EXIT O

O
!R

i g
w

..i. II!; C
f't)IA

S
t.f'M

T
llA

S
IM

C
LE

 E
F

F
lln

 W
ITH

O
JT ~

R
IN

G
 1lE

. "'8
!U

lY
T

O
 G

IL\S
f' l}

E
 1-W

!O
W

Al<L 
~

A
R

E
 SH

A
U

. ilE
:1'101.fH

E
tlA

T
 .\H

E
l~

T
 (SC ll"" TO

I.I."' /,EO
V

I: lll:fL
O

C
R

. 
D

O
O

RS SH
.D

U
.IIE ~
 FR

O
M

 Tt£
 N

SIO
E 

\-.,lllM
 T

hE
 ~
 CE' A

 l<EY
 D

R /lH
Y

 Sl'E
C

L
/lt. it'«lW

I..E
D

C
!:. 

l.W
E

A
T

H
E

R
S

lP
.f'A

U
.O

O
atK

JIC
X

X
>

M
S

. 
4

.f'1
0

U
IJH

A
R

:Y
f.\.'lf.l'~

L
A

~
T

fD
IT

IO
H

D
fG

O
'~

G
C

IX
E

. 
l.b

cO
R

tw
O

...E
S

S
H

N
..L

IIE
I.E

\'tR
l'O

'~
l'IS

!ll'U
J..tR

f:W
'l-'1

..!1
(1

. 
t'.A

kll"IJ'lfF
F

O
R

T
T

O
!F

fR
A

T
C

O
O

C
R

S
9-W

.L
N

O
T

 
~
 l•l/2 l'O

.N
l'5 FO

A
 EJC

Tfl!ID
A

 1>0(11:tiJ.N
D

 ~ "°-N
D

S
F

O
R

 M
!R

IO
R

O
O

O
llS. 

o
.

laU
10.'14T

rC
oo::::A

Q
.O

S
IP

E
S

.i,l'R
~

S
l!N

T
,1'1U

S
T

B
!!A

D
.A

J:S
T

E
O

T
O

A
U

.O
W

A
1

'1
t.1:'1

.N
O

,T
t.i:~

S
!!IX

J
'C

>
S

fC
l'O

f!fa
.o

,,-c
 

~~~ ~
~

~
~

=
~

~c~
~

•J'=
Jo

:i?
~

 IL
J&

 .
• 

1'l-
-
o

 

T
A

I.L~c:IC
D

D
l9LJJC

M
W

A
LL 

IN
C

l.O
ltll«

lll)rrt\!lC
D

ll""llll 

8-Tl--r~ 
~~-,;' I 

KING OF W
ING

S 

1 CA
L

G
R

E
E

N
 N

O
T

E
 

1 
_-r __ :r 

-Ill: ---
11 

FLOOR PLAN 
P

roject N
um

ber 
KO

W
20-· 

K
IN

G
 O

F W
IN

G
S

 • K
ITC

H
E

N
 

F
L

O
O

R
 P

LA
N

 
1/4"=

1'-0" 

.... , .-.atarcJoso;;uo. 
T

he effective flush volum
e of all w

ater closets shall not exceed 1
.2B gallons per 

ftush. T
ank-type w

ater closets shall be certified to th
e perform

ance criteria of the 
U

. S
. E

P
A

 W
aterS

ense S
pecification fa-T

ari<
~T

ype T
oilets. 

N
ote

: T
he effective flush YO

lum
e c:/ dual flU

5h tcilet.s Is defined as the com
posite

, 
average flush vo{um

e o
f ti.vo recx.Jced flushes and one fuD tlU

5h. 
5.303.3.Z

U
rinals. 

T
he effective flush vo

lum
e o

f urinals shell not exceed 0.5 gallons_p_~rfh,!~b,. _
_

 _ 

REAR DOOR HARDW
ARE 

D
ato 

06/15/21 
Drawn by 

JO
NATHAN HAYO

I 
C

lim
eo6y 

JO
NATHAN HAYO

I 

A
-1

.0
0

 
1

/4
"=

1
' 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

ATTACHMENT "B" 

List of On-Sale Alcohol 
Establishments in the City 

8 



3
4

0
8

2
9

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

5
/1

5
/1

9
9

8
 

4
/3

0
/2

0
2

5
 G

O
N

I, C
E

LF
IO

 
1

5
6

5
1

 H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

 B
LV

D
, S

T
E

C
, D

, &
 E

,LA
W

N
D

A
LE

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 6

0
3

9
.0

2
 

IN
C

A
 G

O
U

R
M

E
T

 P
E

R
U

V
IA

N
 B

U
FFE

T 

3
4

7
8

1
2

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

1
2

/4
/1

9
9

8
 

2
/2

8
/2

0
2

5
 E

L P
O

LLO
 IN

K
A

 IN
C

 
1

5
4

0
0

 H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

E
 B

LV
D

, S
TE

 D
,LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

C
e

n
su

sT
ra

ct: 6
0

3
8

.0
2

 
E

L P
O

LLO
 IN

K
A

 IN
C

 

4
2

0
9

1
6

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

7
/2

0
/2

0
0

5
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

4
 P

A
R

IM
A

L, S
H

A
N

K
A

R
 

1
5

1
1

2
 IN

G
LE

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E
.LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

C
e

n
su

s T
ra

ct: 6
0

3
9

.0
2

 
A

L N
O

O
R

 P
A

K
IS

T
A

N
I C

U
IS

IN
E

 

5
4

3
9

5
2

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

6
/2

6
/2

0
1

4
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

4
 H

U
O

N
G

 V
I R

E
S

TA
U

R
A

N
T IN

C
 

1
5

1
7

0
-80 P

R
A

IR
IE

 A
V

E
.LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

C
e

n
su

s T
ra

ct: 6
0

3
7

.0
2

 
P

H
O

 H
U

O
N

G
 V

I R
E

S
TA

U
R

A
N

T 

5
4

6
0

6
8

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

0
 

1
2

/1
2

/2
0

1
4

 
3

/3
1

/2
0

2
5

 B
R

O
O

K
LY

N
 B

A
R

 LLC
 

1
6

6
1

8
 H

A
W

T
H

O
R

N
E

 B
LV

D
,LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

-3
2

4
1

C
e

n
su

sT
ra

ct: 6
0

4
1

.0
2

 
B

R
O

O
K

LY
N

 B
A

R
 

5
4

9
5

2
4

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

1
1

/1
0

/2
0

1
4

 
1

0
/3

1
/2

0
2

4
 N

E
W

 S
A

IG
O

N
 D

IS
H

 C
O

R
P

 
1

5
7

2
5

 H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

E
 B

LV
D

, S
TE

 1
0

8
-1

0
9

,L
A

W
N

D
A

L
E

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 6

0
3

9
.0

2
 

S
A

IG
O

N
 D

IS
H

 

5
5

4
7

6
4

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

4
/2

2
/2

0
1

5
 

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

4
 C

O
R

N
E

R
 JO

IN
T

 LLC
 

1
4

3
1

9
 H

A
W

T
H

O
R

N
E

 B
LV

D
.LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

C
e

n
su

s T
ra

ct: 6
0

3
9

.0
1

 
C

O
R

N
E

R
 JO

IN
T

 LLC
 

5
8

3
5

1
9

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

2
 

1
/3

/2
0

1
8

 
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

4
 A

C
O

S
T

A
, B

O
B

B
I A

N
N

 
1

6
8

0
5

 P
R

A
IR

IE
 A

V
E

.LA
W

N
D

A
LE

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
-3

0
0

9
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 6

0
4

1
.0

2
 

LA
W

N
D

A
LE

 B
R

E
W

H
O

U
S

E
 

5
9

5
6

5
8

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

8
 

1
0

/1
9

/2
0

1
8

 
9

/3
0

/2
0

2
4

 P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
LIT

Y
 G

R
O

U
P

 IN
C

. 
1

6
8

2
9

 P
R

A
IR

IE
 A

V
E

.LA
W

N
D

A
LE

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
-3

0
0

9
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 

6
0

4
1

.0
2

 
S

LY
 FO

X
 IR

IS
H

 P
U

B
 TH

E
 

5
9

7
1

6
9

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

1
0

/1
5

/2
0

1
8

 
9/3

0
/2

0
2

4
 B

O
S

S
A

 N
O

V
A

 IN
C

 
4

4
6

0
 R

O
S

E
C

R
A

N
S

 A
V

E
 ,LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

-6
9

3
4

C
e

n
su

s T
ra

ct: 6
0

3
9

.0
1

 
B

O
S

S
A

 N
O

V
A

 R
E

S
TA

U
R

A
N

T &
 D

E
LI M

A
R

K
E

T 

6
0

5
9

0
6

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

6
/2

8
/2

0
1

9
 

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

4
 P

A
N

A
M

E
N

O
, O

S
C

A
R

 IS
A

IA
S

 
1

5
2

1
4

 H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

E
 B

LV
D

.LA
W

N
D

A
LE

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 6

0
3

8
.0

2
 

P
A

D
R

IN
O

'S
 D

R
A

FT H
O

U
S

E
 &

 G
R

ILL 

6
1

4
8

5
7

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

6
/1

2
/2

0
2

0
 

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

4
 K

IN
G

 O
F W

IN
G

S
 LLC

 
1

4
4

0
6

 H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

E
 B

LV
D

,LA
W

N
D

A
LE

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
-1

5
1

7
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 6

0
3

8
.0

1
 

K
IN

G
 O

F W
IN

G
S

 

6
4

5
1

1
0

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

7
 

2
/1

4
/2

0
2

3
 

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

5
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 G
O

LF
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
 

1
6

4
0

0
 P

R
A

IR
IE

 A
V

E
.LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

C
e

n
su

s T
ra

ct: 6
0

3
7

.0
2

 
A

LO
N

D
R

A
 G

O
LF

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 

6
4

5
1

1
0

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
6

8
 

2
/1

4
/2

0
2

3
 

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

5
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 G
O

LF
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
 

1
6

4
0

0
 P

R
A

IR
IE

 A
V

E
.LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

C
e

n
su

s T
ra

ct: 6
0

3
7

.0
2

 
A

LO
N

D
R

A
 G

O
LF

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 

6
4

5
6

8
7

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

5
/1

1
/2

0
2

3
 

4
/3

0
/2

0
2

4
 O

C
H

O
A

 C
O

N
T

R
E

R
A

S
, H

E
N

R
Y

 E
R

IC
K

 
1

7
0

1
3

 H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

E
 B

LV
D

,LA
W

N
D

A
LE

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
-3

3
0

2
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 6

0
4

0
.0

2
 

S
O

U
T

H
 B

A
Y

 N
U

M
E

R
O

 U
N

O
 P

IZZA
 

6
4

6
4

6
7

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

7
/1

4
/2

0
2

3
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

4
 E

L T
A

R
A

S
C

O
 M

E
X

IC
A

N
 F

O
O

D
 LLC

 
4

8
0

9
 M

A
R

IN
E

 A
V

E
,LA

W
N

D
A

LE
, C

A
 9

0
2

6
0

C
e

n
su

s T
ra

ct: 
6

0
3

9
.0

0
 

E
L T

A
R

A
S

C
O

 

6
5

4
8

8
7

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 
4

1
 

1
/1

2
/2

0
2

4
 

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

2
4

 LO
S

 C
O

M
P

A
D

R
E

Z
 IN

C
 

1
5

0
2

0
 H

A
W

T
H

O
R

N
E

 B
LV

D
, S

TE
 D

,LA
W

N
D

A
LE

, C
A

 9
0

2
6

0
-1

5
4

3
C

e
n

su
s T

ra
ct: 6

0
3

8
.0

1
 

M
A

R
IS

C
O

 S
P

O
T

, T
H

E
 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

ATTACHMENT "C" 

List of Churches, Schools and Parks 

9 



Sensitive Land Uses 

1 CENTINELA BAPTIST CHURCH 4 730 W. 152nd Street 
2 CENTRO CRISTIANO DIOS ES AMOR 4408 W. 14 7th Street 

3 RRESTORATION LIFE CHURCH 4234 W. 14 7th Street 
4 CHURCH OF JESUS CHRIST OF LATTER-DAY 14801 Osa e Avenue 
5 LAWNDALE FOURSQUARE CHURCH 4560 W. 154th Street 

6 THE WAY TO GOD CHURCH 4221 Marine Ave 
7 JOY FELLOWSHIP 15233 So. Grevillea Avenue 
8 JEHOVAH'S WITNESSES 4610 Marine Avenue 
9 CHRISTIAN HERITAGE CENTER 16421 Hawthorne Blvd. 
10 UNITED PENTECOSTAL CHURCH 15424 S. Freeman Avenue 
11 THE WESLEYAN CHURCH 4455 W. 168th Street 
12 APOSTOLIC CHRISTIAN CHURCH OF NAZERETH 15208 Mansel Avenue 
13 DESTINED LA 14714 Burin 
14 COVENANT WITH JESUS CHRIST 14623 Hawthorne Blvd 
15 CRISTO PARA LAS NACIONES LAWNDALE 4309 Marine Ave 

lewood Avenue 

L 4118 W. Rosecrans Avenue 

4951 Marine Avenue 

CVU Adult School 4953 Marine Avenue 

Environmental Charter Hi h school 16315 Grevillea Avenue 

4521 W.14 7th Street 

4130 W. 154th Street 

William Green Elementar 4520 W. 168th Street 

Bill Mitchell Elementar 14429 Condon Avenue 

Jane Addams Middle School 4535 W. 153rd Place 

Will Ro ers Middle School 4110 W. 154th Street 



Jane Adams Park 15114 Firmona Avenue 
4161 Manhattan Beach Blvd 
4415 163rd Street 
4045 W. 167th Street 

William Green Park 4558 w. 168th Street 

Larch Avenue Park 14725 Larch Avenue 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

ATTACHMENT "D" 

Map of Churches, Schools 
and Park Locations 

10 





AGENDA ITEM F-2 

ATTACHMENT "E" 

Application 

11 



Cnsc Number: 2~\-0L.-1 
Date Filed: _J l fm 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE PER1\1IT 

Pro.icct Address: / 7-/'-/ O(p J-f v-. W fj, ()rn e,., h}. _____ _....:.------------·-~-
Legnl Description (Assessor's Parcel Number): -------
Project Desci:lption: 0/' .ftl-e .·{{Ji •l C0J.sJJ.!!1 .,fip,.; tit-:· II _fidl:/2.n ( f .,,,, 

111
) 

f} f _11/ci, 0 I ((pe in) Ii 7 t? I' 7 e X 1..sTI ~ 7 t re.s/iu .. U?..l .j- ti/ ,::1-1, 13 e eP ,,,,, I 1;';; vc. ' 

~ P1·01)crty O\\.'nt!r' (s) Nomo (s): Lql 1)0 dc:1\~J.,._.h..._C_<-------~ 
Pt·opcrty O'Wtler's Ad<lr<iss: 

Phone Numhcr: ___ __ Fax Number: ----,- E~mnil: 

Contuct Pc1•so11 Numc (rc~rese~t~tive o~prope~) O\~ner): - /<.e V/11~p;-,~---~,-_,,-,,-1-K-/1 'vt. 

Contnct Persons Addt·css: 3D'-/-V8 CJ}y' /i-1pie- S; {~rft11"c.., r1t:i. °!l.3 ~ y· 
Phone Numbc\~ 

13 {o Lfo9.:tl Fnx Number~/} u~ e,.... E-man/ / {;}__1,!ln~l:!l'..ld 1¥t1111:J1. (' Chi 

Owner Authorization for Contact Pl~rsou: l hereby authorize the nbove-lis ·t~d i11dh idual to 
nc:t on my behalf in all matters relevant to this appliculion. 

Mnkrinls <..c,·tificnfion: I certify that the informution and exhibits herewith. includin' th(' 
accuracy of the~ mailing radius information submitted c1re trne and correct to the best of my 
knowledge: 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

ATTACHMENT "F" 

Vicinity Map 

12 



VICINITY MAP 

Subject Site 
14406 Hawthorne Blvd. 

)PLICATION/CASE NO: 

TE ADDRESS: 

City of Lawndale 
Community Development Department 

P.C. Case No. 24-04 
Cynthia Ferreira 
14406 Hawthorne Boulevard 
Lawndale, CA 90260 

0 
North 



AGENDA ITEM F-2 

ATTACHMENT "G" 

Resolution No 24-05 

13 



RESOLUTION NO. 24-05 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING SPECIAL USE PERMIT, 
CASE NO. 24-04, FOR ON-SITE SALE/CONSUMPTION OF BEER, WINE 
AND DISTILLED SPIRITS (TYPE 47 LICENSE) OF AN EXISTING 
RESTAURANT (KING OF WINGS) LOCATED AT 14406 HAWTHORNE 
BOULEVARD, WITHIN THE GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE AND 
FINDING OF EXEMPTION FROM CEQA 

WHEREAS, an application was filed by Cynthia Ferreira ("Applicant") seeking 
approval of a special use permit for onsite sale/consumption of beer, wine and distilled spirits 
(type 47 license) of an existing restaurant known as "King of Wings" ("Case No. 24-04"), 
located at 14406 Hawthorne Boulevard ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned General Commercial (GC); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code ("LMC") Section 17.28.100, 
the approval of a special use permit ("SUP") is required for all businesses where alcoholic 
beverages are sold or served for consumption on or off premises, including restaurants; and 

WHEREAS, LMC Section 17.28.104(B) authorizes the approval of a SUP for 
restaurants with on-site sale of beer,wine and distilled spiritswhen the approval of an application (i) 
will not result in the number of on-sale general alcohol outlets in the city exceeding three 
establishments within the city, (ii) the property line of the subject site is at least three hundred feet 
from the closest property line of any school, public park, or public playground or church premises 
,and (iii) the property line of the subject site is at least three hundred feet from the property line of 
any other on-sale location ; and 

WHEREAS, the SUP application satisfies the requirements of LMC Section 
17.28.104 (B); and 

WHEREAS, LMC Section 17.28.014 (B) provides that one of the prerequisites for 
approval of a SUP by the Planning Commission is a finding that the granting of such SUP will not 
be detrimental to the public health or welfare or injurious to the property or improvements in such 
zone or vicinity; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined that any public health, 
safety and welfare concerns can be ameliorated by conditioning the business to meet health and 
safety standards such that the granting of this SUP will not be detrimental to the public health or 
welfare or injurious to surrounding property or improvements; and 

WHEREAS, Case No. 24-04 was properly noticed for a public hearing before the 
Planning Commission on March 30, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, evidence was heard and presented from all persons interested in 
affecting said proposal, from all persons protesting the same and from members of the City Staff 
and the Planning Commission having reviewed, analyzed and studied said proposal. 
Resolution No. 24-05 
Case No. 24-04 



NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, AND DETERMINE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The recitals set forth above are true and correct and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Section 2: The proposed activity is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") Guidelines Pursuant to Section 15061(b), which provides that CEQA 
only applies to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment. Whereas here, it is determined, and can be seen with certainty, there is 
no possibility that the activity in question, the approval of the application for a SUP, 
may have a significant effect on the environment. Therefore, the activity is not 
subject to CEQA. Allowing the sale and consumption of alcohol at an existing 
restaurant will not result in any effects on the environment. 

Section 3: The following findings of fact and determinations are adopted: 

A. The granting of a SUP will not result in the number of on-sale general alcohol 
outlets in the city exceeding three establishments within the city. Including this 
establishment, there will only be two (2) general alcohol outlets establishments in 
the city. 

B. The property line of the subject site is at least three hundred feet from the closest 
property line of any school, public park, or public playground or church premises. 
The subject property is not within three hundred feet of or adjacent to any sensitive 
land-uses. 

C. The property line of the subject site is at least three hundred feet from the property 
line of any other on-sale location. The subject property is not within three hundred 
feet from the property line of any other on-site sale location. 

D. The granting of a SUP will not be detrimental to the public health or welfare or 
injurious to the property or improvements in such zone or vicinity. It is not 
anticipated that the proposed use will impact the public health, safety or welfare or 
be injurious to other properties because the conditions of approval delineated in 
Section H of this Resolution, require the Applicant to control potential health and 
safety impacts related to litter, loitering or any other illegal activity. 

E. The use applied for at the location indicated is properly one for which a SUP is 
authorized. The Zoning Regulations and the Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan 
allow the establishment of a restaurant which serves beer, wine, and distilled spirits 
in the General Commercial (GC) District, subject to the approval of a SUP. 

F. The site for the proposed use is adequate in size and shape to accommodate said use, 
and all yard, spaces, walls, fences, parking, loading, landscaping, and other features 
required to adjust said use with the land and uses in the neighborhood. The SUP 
allowing on-site sale and consumption of alcohol at this establishment will not 

Resolution No. 24-05 2 
Case No. 24-04 



change the use of the establishment as a restaurant. The site requires fifty-two (52) 
onsite parking spaces for the restaurant and two-hundred eighty (280) spaces are 
provided within the shared parking lot, thereby meeting minimum parking 
regulations. 

G. The site abuts streets and highways adequate in width and pavement type to carry 
the kind of traffic generated by the proposed use. The SUP allowing on-site sale and 
consumption of alcohol at this establishment will not change the use of the 
establishment as a restaurant. The establishment is serviced by Hawthorne 
Boulevard and Rosecrans Avenue. Hawthorne Boulevards is a main thoroughfares 
with a 195 foot right of way and Rosecrans Avenue is a major street with a 100 foot 
right of way, both streets are adequate in size to carry traffic generated by the use of 
the Property as a restaurant. 

H. The granting of such SUP is consistent with the City's General Plan 2045. The 
proposed use is consistent with Policy ED-2.1 of the Economic Development 
Policies in the General Plan. The General Plan supports existing businesses to help 
retain and expand existing businesses within the city. Supporting existing local 
businesses so they can thrive, grow and adapt to changing economic conditions will 
help local businesses but also demonstrate to investors that the City is a desirable 
place to locate. 

I. The Planning Commission hereby approves this SUP application, subject to the 
execution and/or fulfillment of the following conditions of approval: 

1. Within thirty (3 0) days of approval of this entitlement, the Applicant shall certify 
his/her acceptance of the conditions placed on the approval by signing an 
Affidavit of Acceptance. 

2. Violation of, or noncompliance with, any of the conditions of approval, or any 
section of the LMC, shall constitute grounds for revocation of this entitlement. 

3. Pursuant to LMC Section 17.28.106(D), the following shall constitute grounds for 
revocation of this entitlement: (i) the issuance of notice of any violation or 
citation under state or federal law or the LMC; (ii) the revocation of the alcoholic 
license by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control; or (iii) any two 
disciplinary actions by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control in the form 
of a fine or suspension of the alcoholic license, during the term of the special use 
permit. 

4. Within thirty (30) days of approval of entitlement, a signage plan shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Planning Division and the Building & Safety 
Division prior to the installation of any new signs and prior to the sale of on-site 
sales of beer and wine. Future modification(s) to the approved signage plan may 
be made administratively by the Community Development Director. 

5. Within thirty (30) days of approval of this entitlement, the Applicant shall remove 
all unpermitted signs from the front of the subject tenant space. 

Resolution No. 24-05 3 
Case No. 24-04 



6. The Applicant shall post "No loitering" and "No smoking" signs at the entrance 
of the building unit, to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director, 
and shall enforce the prohibitions listed on each sign. 

7. Should loitering or criminal problems occur in connection with the operation of 
this business, the Community Development Director and/ or the Sheriffs 
Department shall have the ability to require additional security provisions. 

8. No gambling or illegal gaming shall be conducted at the premises. Should any 
illegal gambling or gaming be discovered at the premises the Planning 
Commission shall have the ability to revoke this entitlement. 

9. The adjoining private sidewalk and parking lot area (adjacent to the business) 
shall be cleaned on a daily basis. 

10. A trash receptacle shall be provided outside of the business and emptied every 
day. 

11. Any graffiti found on the Property shall be removed within 24 hours of discovery 
to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

12. The Applicant shall comply with all California state laws and regulations 
pertaining to the sale and service of alcoholic beverages, including the laws 
prohibiting the sale of alcohol to persons under 21 years of age and obviously 
intoxicated persons. 

13. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary approvals and licenses from the State of 
California, Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control before the Applicant may 
begin selling alcoholic beverages. 

14. The Applicant shall comply with the City Noise Ordinance, Chapter 8.20 of the 
Lawndale Municipal Code, and the City's regulations regarding loitering and 
curfew. 

15. Occupancy limits shall be clearly posted on the Property. The occupancy shall not 
exceed the number of occupants mandated by the Building Division and Fire 
Department. 

16. The Applicant shall maintain a valid business license as required by LMC Chapter 
5.05. 

17. To the extent not already covered by Section Hof this Resolution, the Applicant 
shall comply with the standard conditions required by LMC Section 17.28.105.] 

Resolution No. 24-05 4 
Case No. 24-04 



18. The Applicant shall not obstruct or block any emergency entrance/ exit doors at 
all times. 

19. The hours of operation for the restaurant use shall be from 8 am to 10 pm Monday 
through Sunday. 

20. The Applicant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, 
officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or 
its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul the approval by 
the City concerning this Special Use Permit. The City shall promptly notify the 
Applicant of any filed claim, action or proceeding and shall cooperate fully in the 
defense of the action. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 10th DAY OF APRIL 2024. 

ATTEST 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
CITY OF LAWNDALE 

Ni Kal S. Price, Chairperson 
Lawndale Planning Commission 

) 
) 
) 

ss 

I, Jared Chavez, Community Development Manager for the City of Lawndale, California, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 24-05 was duly approved by the Planning 
Commission of the City of Lawndale at a regular meeting of said Commission held on the 10th 

day of April 2024 by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED: 

Jared Chavez, 
Community Development Manager 

Resolution No. 24-05 
Case No. 24-04 

5 


	04-10-2024 - Agenda Item F-1 - Case No. 23-17.pdf
	04-10-2024 - Agenda Item F-1 - Case No. 23-17
	04-10-2024 - Agenda Item F-1 - Case No. 23-17 (02)
	04-10-2024 - Agenda Item F-1 - Case No. 23-17 (03)


	Print Agenda Packet: 
	Save Agenda Packet: 
	Back to Top: 


